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SP DISTRIBUTION PLC
STR'ATEGIC REPORT

The dlrectors present their Strateglc Report on SP Dlstrlbutlon plc (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
This includes an overview of the Company’s structure, strategic outlook including 2022 performance and principal risks
and uncertainties. - :

INTRODUCTION

The principal activity of the Company, reglstered company number SC189125, is the ownershlp of the electrlaty
distribution network within the Central Belt and South of Scotland. The network is used to distribute electricity, which has
been transmitted to grid supply points, for electricity supply companies for onward sales to their customers. This activity
W|II continue for the foreseeable future. : -

The ultimate parent of the Company is lberdrola S. A (' Iberdrola") which is Iisted' on the Madrid stock exchang’e. The -
- immediate parent of the Company is Scottish Power Energy Networks Holdings Limited (“SPENH”), the holding company
of the Scottish Power Energy-Networks Holdings Limited Group (“SPENH Group” or ”Energy Networks”). Scottish Power .
Limited (“SPL”) is the United Kingdom (“UK”) holding company of the Scottlsh Power Limited Group (“ Sco’ctishPower") of
which the Company is a member.

- Energy Networks owns three regulated electricity network businesses in the UK. The Company and fellow sub5|d|ary
companies, SP Manweb plc and SP Transmission plc, are ‘asset-owner companies’ holding the regulated assets and
Electricity Distribution and Transmission licences of ScottishPower, and are regulated monopolies. Energy Networks owns *
and operates the network of cables and power lines transporting electricity to around 3.5 million connected customers in
the Central Belt and South of Scotland Cheshire, Merseysnde North Shropshire and North Wales.

The Company is a Distribution Network Operator (”DNO") The electricity distribution networks are reglonal grids that
transport electricity at a lower voltage from the natlonal transmission grid and embedded generators and connect to
industrial, commercial and domestic users. .

The Company is a natural monopoly and is governed by The Office of Gas and Electricity Markets (“Ofgem”) via a regulatory -
price control. The primary objective of the regulation of the electr|C|ty networks is the protection of consumers’ interests

while ensuring that demand can be met and companies are able to finance their activities. Price controls are the method

by which the amount of allowed revenue is set for nétwork companies over the period of the price control. Price control

processes are designed to cover the Company’s efficient costs and allow it to earn a reasonable return, provided the -
Company acts in an efficient manner, delivers value for customers, and meets Ofgem targets. Price controls are delivered

on a regulatory year basis from April to March. Therefore, the majority of the Company‘s performance and key dellverables

are measured and reported on this basis.

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK

Operating review T

The eight-year RIIO-ED1 (Revenue Incentives + Innovation + Outputs) price control ended in March 2023 and, subject to
confirmation from Ofgem in early Autumn, the Company has delivered its main outputs and has performed in line, or
ahead of, targets in its approach to safety, reliability and availability, and customer service. This includes investment in- .
incremental green recovery projects in the drive towards net zero. The financial consequence of the Company’s RIIO- ED1
performance for the year ended 31 March 2023, will be confirmed by Ofgem later in 2023.

Following extensive discussion with Ofgem, recovery of supplier of last resort payments to éu‘pplieré were included in
distribution use of systems tariffs charged from April 2022. Distribution revenues included £50.9 million in respect of this
. and there is an equal’ and opp05|te value within Procurements resultlng ina broadly neutral cash and earnings profile for
- 2022.

On 30 November 2022, Ofgem published its Final. Determiniation on the Energy Networks’ RlIO-EDZ final business plan,
setting out its decision approving the Company’s business case for £1.5 billion of investment in its distribution grid between’
2023 and 2028. Ofgem have now adopted the licence modifications required to give effect to the Final Determination.

Values in action- _ : ,

As a network operator serving communities across Scotland, the Company has a critical role to play in supporting regional
and national decarbonisation ambitions. The Company is focused on providing a business in direct alignment with the:
" priorities of its customers and stakeholders to tackle climate change, and deliver the infrastructure and services required -
to achieve net zero. The Company’s journey to a net zero future is already underway. In the previous regulatory year (April
2021 to March 2022), Energy Networks reduced its distribution business carbon footprint by nearly 33% {excluding losses).
This reduction excludes losses which is measured as the difference of network units distributed and network units caused
by distribution losses in the transportation of electricity. Furthermore, the Company is supporting societal decarbonisation

" by enabling low-carbon technologies, such as electric vehicles (“EVs”) and heat pumps, to be connected to its network.

Lo



SP DISTRIBUTION PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT contmued

STRATEGIC OUTLOOK contmued

Energy Networks, and therefore the Company, is a maJor enabler on the UK journey to net zero and this is embedded in
Ofgem'’s price control mechanlsms mcludmg reductions in the Compan\/s carbon footprint through mvestment in Iow-Ioss
transformers.

’

Storm Arwen in November 2021 was the worst storm in recent years; described as a 1-in-40 yearevent. However, Energy
Networks' staff workéd hard during the storm to restore-88% of customérs who lost power within 24 hours and 96% of
customers within 48 hours. In 2022, former UK Energy Minister Rt Hon Charles Hendry CBE led a review of Energy
Net'vyorks' operational response to Storm Arwen, with a particular focus on the rural communities worst affected. This has

- helped to inform the actions the Company will take to improve its future performance in extreme weather events. There'
are mechanisms for exceptional events within the price controls that mltlgate financial risks to the Company

2022 Performance
The table below provides key financial mformatlon relatlng to the Company s performance dunng the year

Revenue* . ’ Operating profit* Capital investment**

. ) 2022 2021 © 2022 2021 12022 .. 2021
Financial key performance indicators " £m £m ~ £fm £m £m - £m
SP Distribution plc A‘ 533.7 458 6 - 204.7 178 0 185.9 177.1

*" Revenue and Operating profit are presented in.the Income statement and statement of comprehensuve income on page 23.
. *¥* 2022 Capital investment is presented within Note 3 and 4 on pages 33 and 34.
Revenue is £75.1 m|II|on hlgher than the prior year. Distribution revenues include £50.9 million- in relation to Supplier of
Last Resort (“SoLR”) levies. There is an equal and opposite value within Procurements. Underly'!ng distribution revenues
are £24.2 million higher than the prior year mainly reflecting collection of an under- -recovery from prior years.
Operating profit increased by £26.7 million to £204 7 m|II|on in 2022, largely due to the increase in underlymg distribution -
_ revenues described above. .
The Company's capital investment has increased by £8.8 million, primarily due to investment to facilitate net zero targets.
" Higher levels of investment are expected to continue to facmtate UK net zero targets as the’ Company progresses into RHO-
ED2. :

The Company is required to prepare regulatory financial performance reporting for years ending 31 March. Reporting of .
key performance-indicators is aligned to the regulatory year end. Consequently; the latest available data for the last

“regulatory year for the Company has been disclosed in the table below, with the exception of distributed energy which is
reported for the years ending 31 December.

Actual - Target Actual Target

. Notes 2022 2022 . 2021 - 2021
Distributed energy (GWh) ' . (a) 15,626 N/A . 16,215 N/A
_Customer interruptions ta"y - ' (b) 37.2 50.0 43.4 " 50.2
‘Customer minutes lost ("CML") : {c) 27.1 - 40.5. 30.2 41.1

(a) Gigawatt hours (“GWh").

(b) Customer interruptions are reported as the number of customers, per 100 customers, that are affected dunng the year by power cuts that Iast three
minutes or more.

~ (c) Customer minutes lost is reported as the average number of minutes that a customer is wrthout power durmg a year due to power cuts that Iast for
three minutes or more.

Statement of fi nancial posmon

Net assets of .the Company decreased by £178.5 million in the year to £692.7 million. Th|s reflects the impact of the

statutory profit of £128.5 million offset by dividends of £307.0 million paid to the parent.

* Property, plant and equipment increased in the year by £88.7 million to £3,326.9 million. This is primarily due to investment
in distribution and other facilities of £185.6 million offset by a depreciation charge in the year of £123.5 million.

Total loans and other borrowings rose by £216.3 million to £1,561.4 million due to an increase in long-term loans dué to
Iberdrola Group companies. ' o o . :
Outlook for 2023and beyond ) '

_ A key focus for 2023 is the targeted delivery of regulatory outputs for the close out of RIIO-ED1 and the commencement
of RIIO-ED2. .

The Company will continue to implement the delivery plan for the increased volume of activity in RIIO-ED2. This plan
includes incréased recruitment in key areas coupled with external contract placement. -
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’STRATEGIC OUTLOOK continued A
RIIO-ED2 will be particularly significant for the decarbonrsatuon of transport ‘and domestic heating. The work outlmed in
Energy Networks’, and therefore the Company’s, plan will kick-start the much-needed growth in these low-carbon
technologies with over 670,000 EVs, 370,000 domestic heat pumps, and an additional 5 GW of low-carbon electricity
generation connected through ‘the five-year investment period. Within the next ten years, Energy Networks expects the .
number of EVs it supplies on its two distribution networks to increase by over 1.5 million with EV charging potentially
doubling the demand of a domestic property. Through'various innovation projects that the Company has carried out, it .
has identified a key strategic role that it can play in the design and siting of cost-effective EV charging infrastructure. The )
Company will also play a key role in the decarbonisation of heat. Heat in buildings is responsible for a fifth of the UK’s

- greenhouse gas emissions and Energy Networks has forecast up to 1.1 m|II|on heat pump installations by 2030 across its

- two distribution licence areas. '

LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT
Cashand netdebt ' A o
Net cash flows from operating activities decreased by £1.3 million to £298.7 million for the year, as detailed on page:25.
As detailed in the table below, net debt increased by £232.3 million to £1,558.5 million. Cash décreased by £1.4 million.
Net loans payable to Iberdrola Group companies increased by £229.3 million and external loans payable increased-by £0.3'
million. Lease liabilities increased by £0.3 million and accrued interest rose by £1.0 million.

2022 2021
Analysis of net debt o ] Notes . T £m £m
Cash . : : : o (a) 1.6 3.0
Loans receivable from Iberdrola Group companies ’ (b) 64.4 " 787
Loans payable to Iberdrola Group companies : R (c) (1,200.0) (985.0)
External loans payable ' () (349.0) . (348.7)
Lease liabilities o _ _ y @ (631) - (62.8)
Accrued interest . o - ) ‘- (12.4) (11.4)
Net debt j . L . : (1,558.5) (1,326.2)

(a) As detailed on the Statement of financial position on page 22.
(b) As detailed in Note 6 on page 37.
{c) As detailed in Note 12 on page 39.

- (d) As detailed in Note S on page 36.

Capital and debt structure : '

The Company is funded by a- combmatlon of debt and equity in accordance with the directors' objectives of establlshlng
an appropriately funded business consistent with the requirements of the Utilities Act 2000 and the objectives of the
Iberdrola Group: All of the equity is held by the Company’s immediate parent undertaking, SPENH.

Financial instruments

In the current year the Company S flnanmal instruments |nclude Trade and other receivables, Loans and interest recelvables
due from Iberdrola Group companies, Cash, Trade and other payables and Loans and other borrowings. The Company has
exposure to credit risk and treasury risk (comprising both liquidity and market risk) arising from these financial instruments. -

Credlt risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its contractual obllgat|ons under.a financial instrument or customer-
contract, leading to a financial Ioss The crednt risk management strategy adopted for srgmflcant types of financial asset
~ are as follows: ’
o Credit risk in respect of customers is mrtlgated by contracting with multlple counterpartles and limiting expaosure to
individual counterparties to clearly defined limits based upon the risk of couinterparty default.
e Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by ScottishPower’s treasury department in
_accordance with Iberdrola’s cash investment procedure Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved
counterparties and within cre_dlt limits assigned to each counterparty by the Corporate Risk Management department.
e The Company provides funding in the form of interest-bearing on demand loans to other Iberdrola Group companies.
Credit risk from Iberdrola-Group companies is considered to be low as the Company is part of the Iberdrola Group's
centralised treasury function and no Group company has a credlt rating lower than BBB+ (in line with Standards &
Poors’ external credit ratings).
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LIQUIDITY AND CASH MANAGEMENT cont/nued
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will have insufficient funds to meet its liabilities and market risk is the risk of Ioss
thatresults from changes in market rates (e.g. interest rates). The Company's liquidity.position and short-term financing
activities are integrated and aligned with both ScottishPower's and Iberdrola’s. ScottishPower operates and manages a .
centralised cash management model within the UK, with liquidity being managed at a company level. Both liquidity and
"market risk are managed by ScottishPower’s Treasury department, who are responsible for arranging banking facilities on
-behalf of the Company. The Company produces short-term rolling cash flow requirements and, if necessary, any required
funding is obtained via credit facilities already in place which comprise long-term loans and the on-demand facility with
Scottish Power UK plc (“SPUK”). Additional short-term cover is provided by the undrawn committed revolving credntfacnllty
. arrangement with SPUK for £250.0 million (Refer to Note 12 (xii)). :

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES ]

To deliver its strategy, ScottishPower, and therefore the Company, conducts business in a manner benefitting customers
through balancing cost and risk, while delivering shareholder value and protecting its performance and reputation by
prudently managing the risks inherent in the business. To maintain this strategic direction, ScottishPower develops and
implements risk management policies and procedures, and promotes a robust control environment at.all levels of the
-organisation. Further details of ScottishPower’s risk management practlces can be found in the most recent Annual Report
~and Accounts of SPL.. :

The principal risks and uncertalntles of the Company, that.may impact current and future operat|onal and financial
performance and the management of these risks are descnbed on pages 4to06.

REGULATORYAND POLITICAL RISKS .. R . . S s

RISK RESPONSE ) -

- |Compliance with regulatory obligations especially in the|Positive and transparent engagement with all appropriate
context of sudden change of policy, or interventions outside|stakeholders in all key regulatory matters to ensure that long-|-
established regulatory frameworks with potential financial[term ' regulatory stability and political . consensus. is
penalties for non-compliarice. maintained, and public backing is secured for the necessary
' investment.in the UK energy system.

Mitigating actions include formulating detailed investment,
resource, outage and contingency plans supported by an
extensive pr'og:urement strategy and having a funding strategy
in place to support delivery. Good communication and co-
ordination of activities across the busiriess is integral to
success, complemented by a comprehensive monitoring regime
that provides early warning of potential issues. '

"|Failure to deliver the distribution outputs agreed with Ofgem
in the price control under the RIIO framework.

Y T I R — IR T N P N TR P T Rty e

O O - .

€1 IMATF CHANGF RISK
RISK

o g
(R NG -

RESPONSE

“|The risk that the" Company s investments or operatlons have a
significant impact on the environment and on national and
international targets to tackie climate change or that climate
change has a'significantimpact on the Company's assets.

The Company is committed to reducing its environmental

footprint by: ’

s identifying and managing climaterisks and -
opportunities, and implementing adaptation measures
~whererequired; :

¢ reducing emissions to air, land and water and preventmg
environmental harm;

* minimising energy consumption and use of natural and
human-made resources; o -

® sourcing material resources responsibly, cutting waste
and encouraging re-use and recycling;

e investment in green energy network i,nfrastruc,tt)r,e
projects. under the RI1O framework; and

« protecting natural habitats'and restoring biodiversity.
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' PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued

GLOBAL FINANCIAL MARKET.VOLATILITY, RISK 352 &

RISK ] !

RESPONSE

Impacts arising from market and regulatory .reactions to
events including the Ukraine war. As well as positive or
negative changes in the UK economy, these could include
increased volatility on the value of Sterling and foreign
currencies.

Positive and transparent engagement with all ‘appropriate|’
stakeholders to ensure that long-term regulatory stability and
political consensus 'is maintained, and publlc backing is
secured for the necessary investment in the UK energy system.
Providing stakeholders with evidence of the risks of ad hoc
intervention in markets. In addition to monitoring ongoing
developments, the Company adheres to a ScottishPower

' treasury risk ma na‘gement policy (comprising foreign currency,

liquidity and interest rate risk) to mitigate financial risks. This
is discussed further within the 'Financial instruments' section
on pages3and4 '

HEALTHAND SAFETY.RISK &%QMM‘%&%}W&%M

RISK

RESPONSE

A major.health and safety incidentin the course of operations

could impact staff, contractors, communities or the

environment.

The Company has_certified management systems in place to
deliver activities as safely as possible. A ScottishPower Health
and Safety function exists and provides speé:iélist services and
support for the Company in relation to health and safety. A
comprehensive framework of health and safety policy ‘and
procedures, alongside audit programmes is established, which
aims to ensure not‘only continuing legal compliance but also
to drive towards best practicein all Ievels of health and safety
operations.

'RECRUITMENT. AND RETENTION OF STAFF RISK C“{&:” EE SRR o g R A R R S

TR

RISK

RESPONSE

Increased _and appropriate resources ‘'with the correct
capabilities are required to grow the business. '
The increased retiral rate and challenging RIIO-ED2
programme requires substantlal recruitment in the coming
years.

Maintain strategic work force planning and implementation
for the Company, with particular emphasis on future skills, key
capabilities and resourcing for growth opportunities, as well
as best use of trainee programmes. ’

CYBER SECURITY RISKS &

R B WO L R T B B

RISK

- |RESPONSE

The Company operates within an environment where there is
the presence of sophisticated and orjportunistic cyber security
threat actors motivated to identify and take advantage of flaws
and weaknesses in Athe‘Compan'y’s cyber security defences. The
* [Company, in alignment- with UK Regulation, takes .the
protection of its data and the provision of its essential
services very seriously. )

The main risks are:

 Risks related to operational technology used to manage
the production, management and distribution of energy, )
or physical safety systems (fi re protectlon CCTV, alarm
reception centres).

« Risks related to information technology (“17”) that enables
“the Company to operate critical services.

« Risks related to the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of key information assets.

« Other cyber security risks impacting reputation.

The Company-continues ‘to focus on.its enterprise security
risks through enhanced internal governance, complemented by
the adoption of a three lines of defence model with clear roles|
and responsibilities established across ScottishPower and
therefore the Company. , ‘
These risks are managed in accordance with the basic
principles defined in internal cyber security rules promoting
the safe handling of data, use of IT and communications
systems, use of operational technology systems and assets,
and other cy'ber assets, reinforcing detection, prevention,
defence, and response capabilities against possible attacks.

The Company, as part of ScottishPower, continues to lnvest
significantly in its .people, processes, and technologles to
enhance its capabilities to prevent, detect and respond to
security threats. .

The Iberdrola Group currently has specific insurance against
cyber risks, under the terms allowed by the insurance market,
which is revised and updated periodicallyin view of the rapid

evolution and wide variety of cyber risks.

/.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES continued .

SUPPLY CHAINIRISK

RISK

RESPONSE

{nterruption to supply chains due to the Ukraine war, hlgher
costs due to commodity prices, increased risk of suppller
failure due to the déterioration of mdustrlallsed economies
and.excess demand over supply. -

|Compliance, Legal 'and Risk departments. The upward pressure
-lon costs_due to the macroeconomic environment'is managed

Identifying potential shortages and gaps in the supply of
products, equupment and labour. The supply chain for the
Company’ is monltored by- the ScottlshPower Procurement )
departmentin con)unctlon with advice from the ScottishPower|.

and stratégies are developed and |mplemented The risk is
spread through supply chain engagement

PROIFCT, NEEWERY-RISK wm%

ST 5 N R R

RISK - L

RESPONSE

Failure to deliver large and complex projects on time and

within budget. -

1

{developing .'nurnerOUS projects. Project delivery is supported

ana ppropriate funding strategy-

The Company has a strong track record in delivering large
scale engineering projects with Significant experience from

by the use of established and experienced suppliers and

advisors, along with robust financial management including

Continue - constructive engagement with Ofgem on plan
deliverability and regulatory reglmearound projects.

| REDUCED . SECURITY OF SUPPLY. RISK b5

RISK

RESPONSE

-Reduced securrty of supply due to potentral asset failures.

Reduced security of supply has the potential to disrupt many
of the Compa ny's customers, in both its own licence area and
beyond. . g . . '

Risk-based asset investment programme in .place, business
continuity and emergency planning well esta blished'including
Electricity System Restoration Strategic spares policy in place.|’
Continuing- engagement with Ofgem on Great Britain's
resilience. :

{RISK OF INTERRUBTIONS TO.NET.ZERO TIMESCALES - S

RS R A

|RISK .

RESPONSE ‘

The Company is a key faCIlltatOI' to governments’ net zero
ambitions and the failure of the Company to respond to
customers’ changing requirements through the low-carbon
transition (e.g. EVs, distributed generation and storage) could
resultin a failure to meet these targets. ’

Mitigating actions. influencing developments at industry
forums, undertaking scenario modelling of the impact of low-
carbon technologies, co'nsidering technical and commeroial
innovation projects,. engaging with key stakeholders and
owning a clear Distribution System Operator (“DSO”) vision.

performance. This -has the potential to severely damage the
Company's reputation as one of ‘the UK’s top DNOs for
eustomer satlsfactlon and adversely |mpact its performance
[againstits regulated customer satisfaction financial incentive.

CUSTOMER SERVICE PERFORMANCE RISK SR IR
RISK .__|RESPONSE
Failure to protect the Combany‘s- customer. service|Well-established customer service processes to respond to

power loss, _mcludmg storm readiness. Priority: Service
Register to protect'vulnera ble customers in the event .of power
loss. Implementation of a single 'emergency"number to route
customer queries. ) ) ’

The Company continues to monitor and assess the impact of addmonal securlty risks as a result of terrorlsm war and other
world events and will put mltlgatlng actlons in place if and when approprlate
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS

" The importance of engaging with stakeholders :

The Company strongly believes that effective and meaningful engagement wrth stakeholders especially employees is key
to promoting its success and values. Meaningful engagement with stakeholder- groups supports the ethos of section 172
of the Companies.Act 2006 which states that directors should have regard to stakeholder interests when discharging their
duty to promote, in good faith, the success of the Company for the benefit of its members as a whole. Details of how the
Company engages wnth its stakeholders, and how these actrvrtles mfluence the Company s operatlons are'set out on pages
7 to 10. : .

" Key stakeholders o
ScottishPower, and therefore Energy Networks and the Company, has frve key stakeholder categones employees
customers; government and reguiators suppllers and contractors; and communlty and environment.

Behind these stakeholders are many people mstntutrons organisations and groups. All of them, W|th their decisions and
-opinions, influence the Company, and they are also affected by the Company’s activities.-In-addition, these stakeholders

interact with each other, creating a universe of relationships that the Company needs to manage in order to achieve a
' better understandmg of its operating enwronment and to deliver a'more sustalnable performance across |ts activities.

Shareholders are important to the.Company; The Cor_npany’s relationship with its shareholders is governed by the
Company’s Articles of Association and provisions of the Governance and Sustainability System which apply to the Company
and ScottishPower, of which the Company is a member. As the Company is ultimately wholly-owned by Iberdrola, all
ultimate shareholder management activities are carried out by Iberdrola in accordance with its own Shareholder
. Engagement Policy as publlshed at www. iberdrola.com.

EMPLOYEES ' :
The Company: employs 733 employees workmg across a range of roles. The employees make a real difference in’
determining how successfully the Company operates. The creativity, innovation and individuality of the Company’s
employees enables it to build on its future 'capability to operate effectively in a competitive market and continue to have

- aspirations wh|ch are challenging and rewarding. The Company respects and recognises the importance of mdrvrduallty as .
part of its ongoing commitment to promoting a culture where individuality is-celebrated. The Company also understands )
that being a diverse organisation goes beyond having legally compliant policies and practices; itincludes a focus on creating
an innovative, integrated organisation where people feel valued, inspiring them to perform at their best.

As part ofScottishl’ower the Company’s engagement with its employe'es is driven by the decisions, policies an'd procedures
in place at a ScottishPower level. The directors of the Company ensure that in applylng these ScottishPower decrslons
policies and procedures they are meeting their dutles to the Company

Details of the following areas in relation to employee engagement which apply fully to the Company are prov1ded in the
most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPL: .

e employment regulation;

& training;

e employee feedback and consultation;

® inclusionand diversity; .

e rewards and benefits;

e health and safety; and

. empl'oyee health and Wellbeing.

.

Modern Slavery Statement :

The term ‘modern slavery’ covers both slaveryand human traff“cklng ScottishPower, and so the Company, is commltted
to -human and labour rights and to eliminating modern slavery that could in any way be connected to its business. In
""accordance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, ScottishPower has produced its own Modern Slavery Statement, which is
subject to annual approval by the board of directors of SPL. This statement is published oh the ScottishPower website at:
https.//www.scottlshpower.com/ ‘Sustainability’/ ‘Sustainable business’/‘ScottishPower’s Modern Slavery Statement’. .
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS contmued

"~ - CUSTOMERS .

The Company recognises the importance‘of the current cost of living crisis and the impact it is havmg, partlcularly on those
who, are most vulnerable. The Company has an |mportant role to play in supporting its communities through the energy
transition and moreover, ensuring that it goes above and beyond for its communities and that no one is left behind.'The.
Company is aware that the energy crisis has beén hitting its customers hard; especially those who are already in fuel
poverty. That is why the Company works with local partners to prowde a range of financial and social support services
beyond power cuts. : .

. Understanding and responding to its customers' needs is not only deep-rooted in the Compaan culture but is also

‘essential to meeting the goals it has developed with stakeholders'to guide its future plans. The Company s commitment to

" its customers is reflected in its customer service scores which continue to trend. above Ofgem's target: of 8.2. In the
regulatory year 2021/22, the Company achreved a customer satisfaction score of9 17 out of 10.

Power cut support services :

© Where possible, Energy Networks, and therefore the Company, takes all steps necessary to prevent customer detriment
tied to a power cut. When a power cut does occur, the Company works tirelessly to get customers back on supply and,
while it does this, proactively offers a range of services designed to meet different types of customers’ needs. These
services include winter welfare packs, hot food and generator provision. Customers who feel they may need extra support

. during a power cut can join the Company’s Priority Services Register, enabling quick and easy access to twelve support

services. This includes dedicated support, provrsron of hotels and company to vulnerable customers after twelve hours
_ during exceptional events. In 2021/22 Energy Networks delivered 111,147 power cut support services.

Customer needs tracklng tool :

The Company introduced this tool in 2020 whlch tracks |ts vulnerable customers’ personal and diverse needs, allowing it
to understand them and ensure that its support services and processes satisfy thém. The Company’s training programme,
‘Making a Difference’, focuses on vuinerability and the challenges these customers face day-to-day. It explores how an
outage, fault'or work delivered by the Company could-impact customers and demonstrates how the Company’s processes

’ conversatlons and support options help its customers and communities when needed.

Stakeholder engagement strategy
The Company aims to ensure that its stakeholders’ views are considered in everything that it does. It aligns its stakeholder
engagement strategy with the Stakeholder Engagement Standard AA1000 set by AccountAbility. Energy Networks achieved
"85% in the 2022 AccountAbility audit; achieving the highest categorisation possible (‘Advanced’). This represents an overall
improvement of 19% since the first audit in 2018. The Company continues to work closely to identify the needs of
vulnerable customers and stakeholders as- measured by Ofgem stakeholder engagement incentive. The scores for the
stakeholder engagement incentive for the regulatory year 2021/22 was 5.29 out of 10 for the Company. This compares to
7.08 in 2020/21 reflecting a challenging year for the utilities industry due to increased prices. .

" -Maintaining a reliable supply of electricity
Society rightly expects to consistently receive. a reliable supply of eIectncnty at the flick of a switch, which is why the -
Company continues to strive to exceed its RIIO-ED1 regulatory price control commitments and will continue to do so as it
enters into the RIIO-ED2 period. This year has continued to see unprecedented challenges for. the energy 'sector.'Energy
Networks, and therefore the Company, has continued to serve its distribution customers with 99.99% reliability levels for
30p per day, protectlng the most vulnerable and ensurmg supply’ to crltlcal sites such as hospitals, nursing homes, water
- treatment works and food supply businesses. . - . .

GOVERNMENT AND REGULATORS

Governments and regulators play a central roIe in shapmg the energy sector. The Company engages with them dlrectly
and through trade associations, responding to issues of concern and providing expertise to support policy development.
Through this engagement, the Company aims to contribute to the delivery of -a UK energy system that functions’in the
interests of customers now, and in the future, including achievement of the UK and Scottish Governments’ net zero .
decarbonisation targets. :

The Company has also continued its engagement wrth the UK Government Ofgem and other stakeholders on the RHO-ED2
. price control, highlighting the need for appropriate levels of ambition towards achieving net zero and appropriate incentive
mechanisms for network investment. On 30 November 2022, Ofgem published its Final Determination on the Company’s
_ business plan for the RIIO-ED2 price control, approving £1.5 billion worth of spending to help the Company‘ready the UK
" for an electric future. (Refer to ‘Operating review’ and Outlook for 2023 and beyond’ sections of the Strategic Report for
further detalls ) .
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued

SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS .
As part of ScottishPower, the Company’s engagement with its suppllers and contractors is driven by the decisions, pollcres
and procedures in place at a ScottishPower level. The directors of the Company énsure thatin applylng these ScottishPower
decmons policies and procedures they are meetlng thelr duties to the Company.

The Company aims to develop,and maintain strong relationships across its supply base with a focus on health and safety,
" quality, cost and sustainability. The Company expects its suppliers to operat'e to’a high standard including working‘in an
ethical and sustainable manner, and the Company has a range of pohcues that all suppllers must adhere to, including the
ScottlshPower Code of Ethics. :

Engagement with the supply chain is always a crmcal activity for the Company but continues to become more important
- as the Company adapts to the current geopolitical.and macroeconomic chaIIenges in addition to the post-pandemic
* recovery and. Brexit transition, which have also impacted.the supply chain. The Company is experiencing cost pressures
due to high global commodity prices along with increasing freight-and labour costs (refer to the Prmcnpal risks and
uncertainties’ section for further detalls)

COMMUNITY AND ENVIRONMENT : : .
The Company continually strives to be a trusted respected and mtegrated part of the commumty, by operating with
integrity, transparency, and working closely within the community to build relat|onsh|ps The Company is committed to
being a good neighbour throughout all of its operations to ensure the benefits are realised in local areas by helping to
create local employment ‘and enabling improvements to local mfrastructure and services. :

Supporting local communities to achieve net zero ' ,
Within the next ten years alone, the Company expects the number of EVs in its dlstr|but|on network area to increase to
over 1.5 million vehicles, and-with this, the requirement for EV charging will double the demand of electricity in domestic
.properties. The Company is working closely with its stakeholders to ensure a Jomed up approach that supports their
individual needs and helps facilitaté the significant impact on its network. The Company is working with all 32 Scottish
councils to support their decarbonisation plans.-This year, the Company has hosted six workshops on EV charger
installation and.offered training for all local authorities. The Company is a key enabler to the decarbonisation of heat, but
the concurrentincreases in heat pumps means demand will increase beyond existing network limits. The Company is taking
learnings from its innovative Heat-Up project to support the Scottish Government in producing a framework to support
" network solutions to facilitate the uptake. of heat technologies.

Given the criticality of the climate emergency, the Companiy is helping its communities across Scotland to embrace their
low energy solutions in a way that is beneficial for.local néeds. Community energy'is playing a crucial role in achieving net
zero by increasing participation and embedding behaviour change. Community energy organisations are a critical part of
the future energy system and in ensuring a just transition. The Company is leading the way in community.energy through
supporting the pIan‘hing and development-of key projects, aimed at supporting its local communities’ journey to net zero.
The Company established a number of partnership projects and collaborations with local .community energy groups
bunldlng on-work in this area, gaining wider stakeholder msnght and building this into ltS plans. -

Commumty engagement keeping communities safe
Energy Networks, and therefore the Company, consistently delivers clear and useful |nformat|on on electrical safety-
through safety- campaigns, and attendance at events. It has reached over 100,000 individuals through its Powerwise
website aimed at electrical safety for children over a five-year period. It has also reached over 94,900 children through
Fixed Safety Education Centres as well as carrying out over 300 ‘Crucial Crew’ events where attendance has been upwards
- of 40,000 pupils. The Company participates in numerous regional agricultural shows. In addition, the Company supports
the National Farmers Union and National Forestry Industry through regular meetings promoting: safety; awareness of the
Company’s assets; recurring incidents; supported training and awareness sessions. The Company also promotes and
circulates any ongomg safety campalgns it has in relation to electrical safety.
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ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS continued

Supporting the vulnerable in the community :

Ongoing engagement with stakeholders and people in vulnerable situations, complemented by a sophisticated data
strategy, have led the Company to build a comprehensrve and accurate picture of its customers’ needs. These needs are
complex, diverse and multi-dimensional; addressing them all requires the involvement and support of many bodies and
organisations across the private and public sectors. At the same time, as a regulated network, everything the Company
does is funded by its customers so it is essential that the Company’s efforts in tackling vulnerability focus on the areas
where its customer base and its expert stakeholders believe they can have the most impact. Over the years, the Company
_has worked closely with them to define its role in supporting customers in vulnerable situations; for example, the Company
has learned that its customers want it to support people in times of hardshlp but do not believe it is the Company’srole to
provide direct financial support. '

Collaboration with customers and stakeholders led the Company to focus on the three followmg needs

e Protect the mental and physrcal welfare of customers when.a power cut occurs.

* Tackle the root causes and consequences of fuel poverty and access immediate help to deal with wider socialissues.
. Access the beneflts and opportunities of low-carbon technologles and nawgate a changmg energy system.

While the Company s consumer vulnerability programme is focused on addressmg these three core needs the Company
has taken new steps to ensure that its vulnerable customers can access 360-degree support that truly makes a lasting
impact on their wellbeing and their quality of life. The Company’s Coalition of Partners mode! gives it the means to'directly
connect those in need of extra help with tailored support from organisations.with the expertise and resources necessary .
to make a difference. This model complements the Company’s portfolio of support, allowing it to focus its efforts where it
can be more effective while leaving no stone unturned to support |ts vulnerable customers

INNOVATION :

It is crucial that ScottishPower, and therefore the Company, continues to innovate and drive forward towards a
decarbonised smart energy future. By championing innovative technologies, bringing down the costs of decarbomsatlon
and ensuring that no communities are left behind on the road to net zero, ScottishPower continues to lead by example in
making sure clean, affordable energy is available to all.

The Company is working with numerous third parties to realise innovation projects that help tackle some of the UK’s
biggest and most complex challenges in the push towards the UK achieving its net zero émissions targets.

". SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with section 172 of the Companles
Act 2006 .

The Compames (Miscellaneous) Reporting Regulations 2018 requires the dlrectors of SP Distribution plcto give a statement
which describes how the directors have had regard to the matters set out in_section 172(1) of the Companies-Act-2006
when discharging their duty under that section.

The' directors acknowledge and understand their duties and responsibilities, mcludung that, under sectlon 172 of the
Companies Act 2006, a director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely
to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in domg so have regard (amongst
other matters) to:

(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long-term;

(b) the interests of the company's employees;

(¢} the need to foster the company's business, relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

(d). the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;

(e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of busmess conduct; and

(f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company.

The delivery of the strategy of the SPENH Group, of which the Company isa member, requrres the Company to conduct
business in a manner benefitting customers through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and
protecting the performance and reputation of the Company by prudently managing risks inherent in the business. In
carrying out this strategy, the directors’ duties under section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 have been considered.
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STRATEGIC REPORT continued

SECTION 172.STATEMENT continued
The directors strongly believe that effective and meaningful engagement with stakeholders and employees is key to
promotmg the success of the Company Details’ of the key stakeholders of the Company, and how they engage with them

-are-as follows:

Customers details of how the Company engages with its customers are explained in the ’Customers sub-section of

_ the Strategic Report, on page 8. During the year, the Company’s board of directors (“the Board"), received and noted

the Company’s-most up-to- -date and available customer service scores.

‘Employees: details of how Energy Networks, and so the Company, engages with its employees are set out inin the
“Employees’ sub-section of the Strategic Report, on page 7. During the year, the Board considered and’ approved the -~

adoption by the Company of ScottishPower’s 2021 Modern Slavery Statement.
Communities and the environment: details of how Energy Networks, and so the Company, engages with communities

" and considers the environment are set out in the ‘Community and environment’ sub-section of the Strategic Report,

on page 9. During the year, the Board considered the |mpact of Storm Arwen on customers and communities in the
prior year. '
Suppliers and contractors: details of how Energy Networks and so the Company, engages with |ts suppllers are-set

" outinthe ‘Suppliers and contractors’ sub-section of the Strategic Report, on page 9. During the: year, the Board noted

the impact of Covid-19 and Brexit on Energy Networks’, and the Company’s, supply chains.

Government and regulators: details of how Energy ‘Networks, and so the Company, €ngages with governments and
regulators are set out in the ‘Government and regulators’ sub-section of the Strategic Report, on page 8. During the
year, the Board noted that Energy Networks, and so the Company, had continued its engagement with governments,
Ofgem and other stakeholders on the RIIO-ED2 price controls.

In- addltlon a statement in relation to the Company’s interaction with |ts shareholders is describéd in the |ntroduct|on to
the ‘Engaging with stakeholders’ section of the Strategic Report on page 7.

The directors, both |nd|V|duaIIy and together as a board, consider that the deC|5|ons taken durlng the year ended 31
December 2022 in discharging the function of the Board were in conformance with their- duty under section 172 of the
Companies Act 2006. : : :

The Board is assisted in considering key stakeholders as part of the decision-making process by including stakeholder ‘

considerations in board papers as appropriate, and board papers are carefully reviewed and considered by all directors. .

' ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

. Scott Mathieson
Director
22 June 2023
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SP DISTRIBUTION PLC
DIRECTORS' REPORT .

'The directors present thelr report and audlted Accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022

INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THE STRATEGIC REPORT
The directors have chosen to disclose information on the following, requrred by the Companies Act 2006 to be mcluded in
. the Directors’ Report, wrthm the Strategrc Report, found on pages 1 to 11.

|nformat|on on financial risk management and pollcles

information regarding future developments of the Company’s busmess
information in relation to innovation activities; and :
information on employee regulatrons and policies.

v STREAMLINED ENERGY AND CARBON REPORTING -

" The Company is exempt under section 20A of Part 7A of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts

and Reports) Regulations 2008 from the requirements to present disclosures concernlng greenhouse gas.emissions, energy
consumption and energy efficiency action-as such disclosures relating to the SPL Group, of which the Company is a part,
are presented in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPUK )

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND ’ .
The net profit for the year amounted to £128.5 m|II|on (2021 £51.7 million). A dlwdend of £307 0 mlllron was paid during
the year (2021 £100.0 m|II|on) .

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE :

Statement regarding the corporate governance arrangements of the SPENH Group -

As required by section 7.2 of the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rules, the dlrectors of the Company have set out
a corporate governance statement for the Compa ny, as required.

The ultimate parent of the Company is Iberdrola, S.A., WhICh is listed on the Madrld stock exchange. The Company, which
has as its direct parent company SPENH and is part of. the SPENH Group, does not apply a corporate governance code on

“the basis that it, as part of the SPENH Group, has adopted the rules and principles of the SPENH Group as they have been
set by the board of directors of SPENH (“the SPENH Board”), in accordance with its terms of reference and the Policy for
the Definition and Coordination of the Iberdrola’ Group and Foundations of Corporate -Organisation (“the Group
Governance Framework”), all of which are based on widely recognised good governance recommendations (“the SPENH
Group.corporate governance system’ ’). Those rules and principles of the SPENH Group corporate governance system that
applied to the Company as part of the SPENH Group during 2022 are set out as follows:

The terms of reference of the SPENH Board are publlshed onwww.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ’Corporate Governance’.

The Group Gov'ernance‘ Framework is published on www.scottishpower.com (* “the SPL Corporate website”) under
‘Corporate Governance’/ ‘Governance and Sustainability System’/‘Corporate Governance’. :

Details of the Scottish Power Limited Board (“SPL Board”) and the Scottish Power Limited Audit and Compliance Committee
(“SP ACC”) are included, given their scope of purview for ScottishPower, including the Company, in.accordance with the
Group Governance Framework, and the inter-ACC coordination requirements under their respective Terms of Reference,
and the General Framework for Relations of Coordination and Informatlon among the Audit Commlttees of Iberdrola, S.A
and its Group.

Corporate governance system . :

The Company is governed by the Board, which consists of five drrectors at the date of approval of these accounts, who
bring a broad range. of skills and experience to the Company. The Board is regulated’in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Assouatlon

In discharging its respon5|b|I|t|es and in the exercise of its decision- -making powers, and in accordance wrth the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Board has, in accordance with the Group Governance Framework, adhered to the SPENH Group
' corporate governance system which applies to the Company as part of the SPENH Group. The SPENH Group corporate
governance system includes the internal corporate rules (including the Purpose and Values of the Iberdrola’ Group, the
Code of Ethics, corporate policies and other internal codes and procedures) that make up the corporate governance system
of ScottishPower and, ultrmately, of the Iberdrola Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT contmued

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued

Board composition -

The directors who held office during the year were as follows o ;
Vicky Kelsall - - {appointed 26 August 2022) -

Frank Mitchell .. . R (resigned 26 August 2022)

.Scott Mathieson ' : S

Alison McGregor : ,

Suzanne Fox  ~ - (appointed 2 February 2022)-

Professor Dame Anne Glover - . (reslgned 20 March 2022)
Craig Arthur

“Suzanne Fox re5|gned on 31 January 2023. Rt Hon Charles Hendry was appomted as a director on 31 January 2023.

There is no separate Appointments Committee within the SPENH Group. Instead, appointment matters relevant to the
" _SPENHGroup and the-Company are dealt with in accordance with an internal group procedure for approving proposed . -
appointments or removals of directors at companies in which the Iberdrola Group holds an interest, and reviewed by the
Iberdrola, S.A. Appointments Committee (“JAC”). The IAC has a function to report on the process of selection of directors
and senior managers of the Iberdrola Group companles !

.Purpose and values - -

The structure of the Company, and the SPENH Group, is set out in.the Strateglc Report. During 2022, the Board has taken
"“into account the purpose and. values 'of the Iberdrola Group and the .Code of Ethics which are publlshed on
www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ’Corporate Governance’. These documents define and promote the purpose values
. and culture of the Company and the SPENH Group

Director responsibilities . :

The directors are fully aware of their duties under the Companies Act 2006, mcludmg assetoutin section 172 of the same.
The primary responsibility- of the Board is to supervise and make decisions as required in relation. to the activities of the
Company’s business and. the SPENH Group, in accordance at all times W|th the SPENH Group corporate governance system
and the provisions of all applicable legislation and regulations. .

The SPENH Board has the necessary autonomy to carry out the day -to- day management and effectrve admlnlstratlon of
Energy Networks, as.well as responsibility for its ordinary control.

" Eurther relevant information on the administrative, management and supervrsory bodies of the boards of the Company’s
parents, as they are pertlnent to the SPENH Group and the Company, -are described in the section below.

Opportunity and risk

The delivery of the SPENH Group’s strategy requtres the SPENH Group to conduct-business‘in a manner benefitting
customers through balancing cost and risk while delivering shareholder value and protectlng performance and reputation
by prudently managlng the risk inherent in the business;

To maintain this strategic direction, Energy Networks develops and |mpIements risk management policies and. procedures
“and promotes a robust control environment at -all levels of the organisation. Details of the applicable-risk policies are
published on www. spenergynetworks co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance

During 2022, the governance structure was supported by the risk policies of the SPENH Group Its business risk assessment
team- and mdependent risk management function supported the Board in .the execution of due diligence and risk
' '.management as described in the 'Prmc:pal risks and uncertainties’ sectlon of the Strateglc Report.

Remuneration-
The directors of the Company are subject to an annual evaluation of their performance in respect of thelr executive
* responsibilities as part of the performance management framework which is in place throughout the SPENH Group.

There is no separate Remuneration Committee within the SPENH Group. Instead, remuneration matters relevant to the
SPENH Group and the Company are dealt with and reviewed by the Iberdrola, S.A. Remuneration Committee (“IRC”). The
IRC‘has a function to report on the remuneration of directors and senior managers of the Iberdrola Group companies.

Stakeholders

* The Board fully recognises that effective and meanlngful engagement with stakeholders is key to promotlng the success of
the Company. The details of key stakeholders, why they-are important to the Company, and how it engages with its
stakeholders are an integral part of its strategic goals and are described in the Strategic Report:
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CORPORATE GOVER’NANCE continued ) )

Administrative, management and supervusory bodies _ ] ) N

SPL Board S - '

The primary responS|b|l|t|es of the SPL Board which has its own management team include drsclosmg, implementing, and
‘ensuring compliance with the policies, strategies and general guidelines of ScottishPower overall, in-accordance at all times
with thé provisions of all applicable legislation and regulations. :

The SPL Board comprised the Chairman, José Ignacio Sanchez Galdn, and nine other directors as at 31 December 2022. '
José Ignacio Sanchez Galan is also the Executive Chairman of Iberdrola. - :

The directors of the SPL Board were:

‘José Ignacio Sanchez Galan - Chairman, internal,.non-executive director
Lord Kerr of Kinlochard GCMG : Vice-chairman, external, non-executive director.
: . : : (resigned as Vice-chairman and director 21 March 2022)
" Professor Sir James McDonald " Vice-chairman, external, non- -executive director
) (appointed Vice- chairman 21 March 2022)".
Keith Anderson, . : Chief Executive Officer
Wendy Jacqueline Barnes " © External, non-executive director
Ifigo Fernandez de Mesa Vargas External, non-executive director
Professor Dame Anne Glover - - External, non-executive director {(appointed 21 March 2022)
Rt Hon. Claire O'Neill . External, non-executive dlrector (appomted 21 March 2022)
Daniel Alcain Lopez A Internal, non-executive director
Gerardo Codes Calatrava " Internal, non-executive director
José Sainz Armada’ . Internal, non-executive director

Rt Hon Claire O’Neill resigned on 17 January 2023..

Meetings of the SPL Board were held on six occasions durmg the year under review. Attendance by the directors was as
follows: '

José Ignacio Sanchez Galan Co- Attended six meetings
Lord Kerr of Kinlochard GCMG , Attended two meetings
Professor Sir James McDonald Attended six meetings
“Keith Anderson =~ . ‘Attended six meetings
Wendy Jacqueline Barnes Attended six meetings
Ifigo Fernandez de Mesa Vargas Attended six meetings -
Professor Dame Anne Glover - - Attended four meetings
Rt Hon. Claire O'Neill Attended four meetings:
Daniel Alcain Lopez . : Attended six meetings
Gerardo Codes. Calatrava " Attended six meetings
José Sainz Armada . ".Attended six meetings

The terms of reference of the SPL. Board are published on the SPL Corporate websute under Corporate Governance
/'Governance and Sustalnablllty System’ /’ orporate Governance’.

sp ACC

The SP ACC, a permanent internal body, has aninformative and consultatlve role, without executive functlons with powers.
- of information, assessment and presentation of proposals to the SPL Board within its scope of actlon which i is governed
by the Articles of Association of SPL and by the terms of reference of the SP ACC.

The SP ACC’s responsibilities include: .
e  monitoring the financial and non-financial reporting processes for ScottlshPower
e monitoring the effectiveness of ScottishPéwer’s internal control, mternal audit, compliance and rlsk management
systems;
e monitoring the statutory audit of the Annual Report and Accounts of ScottishPower; and
e . monitoring the independence of the external auditor and recommending to the SPL Board, the appomtment or
re-appointment of the auditor and the associated terms of engagement..

The SP ACC's terms of reference are published on the SPL Corporate website under ‘Corporate Governancef/’Governance
and Sustainability System’/‘Corporate Governance’. -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued
Membership and attendance
The SP ACC met five times during the year under review. The members of the SP ACC and their attendance record are

shown below:

Director : ) . ) . ) Notes’ SP ACC attendance :
Professor Sir James McDonald, {Chairman, external, non-executive director) ' (i) - Attended one meeting
Ifigo Ferndndez de Mesa Vargas (Chairman, external, non-executive director). - i) Attended five meetings
Wendy Jacqueline Barnés (External, non-executive di‘rector) (iii) . Attended four meetings
Rt Hon. Claire O'Neill- (External, non-executive director) ' (iv) Attended three meetings
Daniel Alcafr\‘Lopez (Internal, non-executive dir.eccor) ) ' ) Attended five meetings

(i) Resigned 20 March 2022.

(i) Appointed Chairman 21 March 2022. .

(iii) Appointed 21 March 2022.

{(iv) Appointed 21 March 2022 and resigned on 17 January 2023

In addition to the attendance set out above, the ScottishPower Control and Administration Director, the Director of Internal
Audit, the Compliance Director and the. Risk Director normally attend, by invitation, all meetings of the SP ACC. Other
members of senior management are also invited to attend as approprlate During the year under review, the external
auditor attended (in part) four meetlngs of the SP ACC. -

Matters considered by the SP ACC during 2022
The issues that the SP ACC specifically addressed aré detailed in its report wh|ch is publlshed on the SPL Corporate website
under ‘Corporate Governance’/'Board of Directors’. :

ScottishPower Management Committee (“SPMC”) - :

The SPMC is a permanent internal body, which was establlshed by the SPL Board to provide an mformatwe and
coordinating role for the activities of ScottishPower. In"accordance with the corporate governance arrangements of
ScottishPower and the separatlon of regulated activities, the SPMC does not exercise any executive function as a decision-
making body. The SPMC meets weekly and receives regular information on the activities of ScottishPower in order to
support the corporate functions and lines of business in understanding the local, legal, regulatory and market specifics in
the UK and in order to assist the ScottishPower Chief Executive Officer {“CEO”) in the performance of his duties. The CEO
defines the composition of the SPMC, having regard to the duties assigned thereto. Those persons that the CEO deems
appropriate may also attend its meetings as invitees, either regularly or at a specific meeting. .

SPENH Board

-

The SPENH Board is responsible for the effective management of the Energy Networks busmess division, in accordance

with the strategy of the SPENH Group. The SPENH Board meets regularly.and reviews strategy, operational performance
and risk issues on behalf of the SPENH Group. .

The SPENH Board comprlsed the Chair, Elena Leén Mufioz, and five other dlrectors as at 31 December 2022. The directors -

and their attendance at SPENH Board meetings held during the period under review (five meetings), are shown below:

Director : . ) Notes  SPENH Board attendance
Elena Leén Mufioz (Chair, internal, non-executive director) ’ Attended five meetings
Frank Mitchell (CEO) _ ’ (i) Attended three meetings
Vicky Kelsall (CEO) ' ) C i {ii) - Attended two meetings

" Professor Dame Anne Glover (External, non-executive director) ) . {iii) Attended o_he meeting
Alison McGregor (External, non-executive dlrector) . Attended five meetings
José Ignacio Sdnchez-Galdn Garcfa-Tabernero (Internal non-executivedirector) (iv) Attended two meetings
Suzanne Fox (External, non-executive director) v) . Attended five meetings .

. Ménica Grau Domene: (Internal non-executive director) - i E Attended five meetings

(i) Resngned 26 August 2022.

(i) Appointed 26 August 2022.

(iii) Resigned 20 March 2022.

(iv) Resigned 20 June 2022. Re-appointed 21 December 2022.

(v) Appointed 1 February 2022 and resigned on 311anuary 2023.

Rt Hon. Charles Hendry was appomted as an external, non-executive director on 31 January 2023.

The terms of reference of the SPENH Board together with rest of the Energy Networks Governance' and Sustalnablhty
System approved by the SPENH Board are published on www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under 'Corporate Governance'.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE continued .

SPENH Audit and Compliance Committee ( “SPENH ACC”)

The SPENH ACC undertakes the role and function of the SP-ACC as- they relate to the regulated Energy Networks dIVISIOn
The relationship’ between the SP ACC and the SPENH_ACC-is governed in accordance with their respective terms of
+ reference. The SPENH ACC's terms of reference are pubhshed on www. spenergynetworks co.uk under’ Corporate
Governance : .

The SPENH ACC, a permanent internal body, has an informative and consultative role, without executive fuhctidns with
powers of information, assessment and presentation of proposals to the SPENH Board within its scope of action, Wthh is
governed by the Articles of Association of SPENH and by the terms of reference of the SPENH ACC.

. The SPENH ACC's responSIbllltles include: . : :

' e - monitoring the financial and non- -financial reportlng processes for the SPENH Group;

e monitoring the effectiveness of the SPENH Group S. mternal control, mternal audit, compllance and nsk
management systems;
monitoring the statutory audit of the Annual Report and Accounts of the SPENH Group, and . .
~momtorlng the independence of the external auditor and recommendmg to the SPENH Board the appomtment
or re-appointment of the audltor and the associated terms of reference

The issues that the SPENH ACC specifically addressed are detailed in its report which is publlshed on’
www.spenergynetworks.co.uk under ‘Corporate Governance’ / ‘Board of Dlrectors

Significant financial statement reportmg issues
During the year the SPENH ACC reviewed and considered regulatory mqumes (further details are provnded in Note 23)

The SPENH ACC met five times during the year under review. The members of the SPENH ACC and their attendance record
are shown below: .

Director ) ) . Notes- - SPENH ACC attendance'
Alison McGregor (Cha|r external, non- executlve drrector) : " . Attended five meetings
Suzanne Fox (External, non-executive director) °~ . o - (i) Attended four meetings
Professor Dame Anne Glover (External, non-executive director) (i) - Attended one meeti n'g

" Ménica Grau Domene {Internal, non-executive director) ) _' Attended five meetings

(i) Appointed 21 March 2022 and resigned on 31 January 2023.
(ii) Resigned 20 March 2022. o -

Rt Hon.} Charles Hendry was appointed as an external, non-executive director on 31 January 2023.

_ DIRECTORS' INDEMNITY
In terms of the Company’s Articles of Association, a quallfylng third party mdemnlty prov15|on isin force for the beneflt of
all the directors of the Company and of associated companies and has been in force duringthe financial year.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each ﬁnancial‘year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with accounting standards and applicable law (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

. Under company law, the diréctors must not approve the financial;statéments unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing
these financial statemenits, the directors are required to: .

s

- o selectsuitable accountmg policies and then apply them consistently;
‘ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any: materlal departures
.+ disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- e assess the Company’s _ability to continue as a going concern, dlsclosmg, as appllcable matters related to going
concern; and
e use the gomg concern basis of accountmg unless they elther intend -to I|qu1date the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic’ alternatlve but to do so. - :
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SP DISTRIBUTION PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPON$IBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS continued

The directors-are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are. suffuent to show: and- explain the
Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any-time the financial posmon of the Company and
enable them to ensure that their fi fnanaal statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
-material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and td prevent and detect fraud and other irfe’gularities

Under apphcable law and regulations, the dlrectors are also respon5|ble for preparlng a Strategic Report and Dlrectors
Report that complies wnth that law and those regulatlons :

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and flnanaal mformatlon relating to the
Company that is included on the ScottishPower website. Legislation in the UK govermng the preparatlon and dissemination
“of the flnanaal statements differs from legislation in otherjurlsdlctlons

Disclosure of lnformatlon to auditor .
Each of the directors in office as at the date of this Annual Report.and Accounts confirms that: .
s sofaras they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
o they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company s auditor is aware of _that lnformatlon ‘

This conﬁrmatuon is given and should be |nterpreted in accordance with the: provxsmns of section 418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

. AUDITOR
KPMG LLP was re- appomted as the audltor of the Company for the year endlng 31 December 2023.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Scott Mathieson

Director
22 June 2023
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II'\IDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT A
TO THE MEMBERS OF SP DISTRIBUTION PLC

1 Ouropinionis unmodified

" We have audited the financial statements of SP Distribution plc (“the Company") for the year ended 31 December 2022
which compnse the Statement of financial position, Income statement and statement of comprehensive income,

‘Statement of changes in equity, Statement of cash ﬂows and the related notes including the accountlng pohaes in
Note 2. :

In our opinion the fmancral statements: : '
o give a true and fair view of the state of Company’s affalrs asat31 December 2022 and of its profit for the year then-
_ ended; : : : .
"- o have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accountlng standards including -FRS 101- Reduced Disclosure
* Framework; and . ’
e have been prepared in accordance with the requnrements of the Compames Act 2006."

Basis for oplnlon :

We conducted our auditin accordance with Internatlonal Standards on Audltlng (UK).{“1SAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our
responsrbllltles are described below. We believe that the audlt evidence we have obtained is a suf‘ﬁcnent and approprrate
basus for our opinion. Our audit opinion is consistent with our report to the audit committee. :

We were first appomted as auditor by the directors on11 January 2018. The period.of total unmterrupted engagement is
for the six financial years ended 31 December 2022. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and we remain

- independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to
listed publlc interest entities. No non-audit serv1ces prohibited by that'standard were prowded '

2 ' Key audlt matters our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most srgmflcance in the audit of the
financial statements and include the-most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud)

identified by us, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in

the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.-We summarise below the key audit matters (unchanged from

2021), in.arriving at our audit opinion above, together with our key audit procedures to address. those matters and, as

required for public interest entities, our results from those procedures These matters were addressed, and our results
* are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our oplmon thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinjon, and we do not provrde a
separate opinion on these matters .

Capital expenditure
(£185.9 million; 2021 £177.1 mllllon)

Refer to page 28 (accounting policy) and page 34 (financial disclosures).

The risk — Accounting Treatment - The Company continues to undertake major capital projects, mcludmg significant

enhancements to the distribution networks. Property, plant and equipment (in¢luding those assets in the course of
construction} is quantitatively the most significant amount on the Company’s Statement of financial position and is the
most significant area of audit effort. The determination of project costs as capital or operating expenditure is mherently‘
" judgemental as there is'a need to distinguish between enhanicement and maintenance works.

Our response - We assessed the Company’s capltallsatlon policy for compliance with relevant accounting standards. Our
‘procedures included: : .

Control desngn and observation: Evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of a selection of the Company S controls-
over the capital expenditure process ‘including the.approval of the capital expenditure. Tests of effectiveness were
performed by re-performing a sample selected on the basis of the frequency of control operation and were designed to
verify that appropriate procedures were followed in each instance.

Test of details: We critically assessed the capital nature of a statistical sample of additions to property plant and equment
in the year. We assessed the adequacy of the Company’s dlsclosures of its capitalisation policy including the judgement
involved in assessing expenditure as capital.

Our results - We found the accounting treatment and related disclosures for capltal expenditure to be acceptable
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT |
TO THE MEMBERS OF SP.DISTRIBUTION PLC continued

3 Our appllcatlon of materlallty and an overview of the scope of our audit ..
Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at £18.0 million (2021 £16.0.million), determrned with reference
to a benchmark of total assets, of which it represents 0.50% (2021 0.46%). - .

" In line with our audit methodology, our procedures on individual account balances and disclosures were performed to a
lower threshold, performancé materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that individually immaterial
misstatements in individual account balances add up to a material amount across the financial statements as a whole.
Performance materiality was set at 75% (2020 75%) of materiality for the financial statements as a whole, which equates
to £13,500,000 (2021 £12,000,000). We applied this percentage in our determmatlon of performance materiality because
we did not identify any factors indicating an elevated level of risk.

We agreed to report to the SPENH Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected identified mlsstatements exceeding
£0.9 million (2021 £0.8 million), in add|t|on to other |dent|f|ed mlsstatements that warranted reportmg on qualitative
grounds. :

our audit of the Company was undertaken to the matenallty level specrfled above and was performed by a. smgle audit
team. :

4 " Going concern :
The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basrs as they do not lntend to Ilqmdate the
Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s flnancral position means that this is '
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast.significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at Ieast a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (“the going
concern period”). A '

We used our knowledge of the Company, its mdustry, and the general economic envnronment to identify the mherent risks:
to its business model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period. The risks that we considered most likely to adversely affect the-Company’s
available financial resources over this period were the impact of a reduction in energy volumes which would lead to
reduced revenue in the period and the impact of any inability to secure funds to meet committed capital expenditure: itis o
|mportant to note however that the company s normal practice is to secure funding in advance of entering large capital
commitments. It is lmportant to note however that any such reductions in volumes would only create a short-term cash
flow impact as under the Company’s regulatory mechamsm the shortfall would be recoverable through . aIIowable
revenues in future periods. *

We considered whether these risks could plausibly. affect the liquidity in the going concern period by assessing the
Directors” sensitivities over the level of available financial resources indicated by the Company’s financial forecasts taking
account of severe, but plausrble adverse effects that could arise from these risks individually and collectively. -

Our procedures ‘also included critically assessing assumptlons in the Directors’ initial downsrde scenarios relevant to
liquidity. Furthermore, we assessed the ability and intent of the parent company to continue to support the company
" should any such support be required.

We considered whether the gomg concern disclosure in Note 1 to the financial statements glves a full and accurate
description of the Directors’ assessment of going concern; mcludlng the identified risks and dependencies.
Our conclusions based on this work;
e we consider that the dlrectors use of the.going concern basis of accountmg in the preparatlon of the financial
. statements is appropriate;
* we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a materlal uncertamty relatedto
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast srgnlﬁcant doubt on the Company s ability to continue
* as a going concern for the going concern period; and ,
* we found the going concern disclosure in note 1 to be acceptable

However as we cannot predlct aII future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made the above conclus:ons arenota guarantee
that the Company will continue in operation:

5 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulaﬂons ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud - -

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”) we assessed events or conditions that could'indicate
an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or-provide an opportunity to.commit fraud. Our risk assessment procedures
included: . t
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF SP DISTRIBUTION PLC continued

5 Fraudand breaches of laws and regulations — ablllty to detect cont/nued
e Enquiring of directors, the internal audit function, the group’s legal function and the compliance function and
inspection of policy documentatlon as to the Company’s high-level policies and procedures to prevent and detect
fraud and the Group’s channel for * ‘whistleblowing”, as’ weII as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected
or alleged fraud. - .
e Reading Board and Group Audit and Compliance Committee minutes.
e Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonshlps

We: communicated identified fraud nsks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any mdncatnons of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by audltmg standards, and taklng into account any potential pressures to meet proft targets, recent revisions
to guidance and our overall knowledge of the control environment, we performed procedures to address the risk of
management override of controls, in particular the risk that management may be in a position to make inappropriate
: a'c‘counting entries and the risk of bias in accounting estimates and judgements. On this audit we do not believe there is a
fraud risk related to revenue recognition because, the Company’s revenues consist entirely of routine, non- complex
transactlons which are subject to systematic processing and do not require significant judgements. »

We did not |dent|fy any additional ‘fraud risks.

We performed procedures including identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test based on risk criteria and
comparing the identified entries' to' supporting documentation. These mcluded those posted by senior fmance
management and those posted to unusual accounts.

Identifying and responding to risks of material m/sstatement due to non-compliance with laws and regu/atlons

We identified areas of laws and regulatlons that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the flnanC|aI
* statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion with the directors and other
management (as required by auditing standards), and from' inspection” of the Company’s regulatory and legal
correspondence . and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

As the Company is regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining an understandlng of the control envnronment
including the entity’s procedures for complylng with regulatory requirements.

_We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remalned alert to any mdlcatlons of'
noncompllance throughout the audit. :

The potentlal effect of these laws and reguiations on the ﬁnanaal statements varies consnderably

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation (including form and content), related companies Ieglslatlon distributable profits legislation and tax
" legislation and regulatory requirements governing certain revenue streams and we assessed the extent of compllance with
these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a.material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation or the loss of the Company’s licenses to operate. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have
such an effect: GDPR compliance, health and safety legislation, fraud, corruption and bribery legislation, employment and
social security legislation including minimum wage and pension auto-enrolment, environmental protection legislation,
Ofgem regulations and distance selling regulations, recognising the regulated nature of the Company’s activities. This
includes the Ofgem related matters disclosed in Note 23, for which.we assessed disclosures against our understanding
from inspection of relevant correspondence between the Company and Ofgem. Auditing standards limit the required audit
" procedures to identify non- compllance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and other management
and mspectlon of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of operational regulatlons is not
disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

We discussed with the Audit and Compliance Committee other matters related to actual or suspected breaches of Iaws or -
regulations, for which disclosure is not necessary, and considered any implications for our audit.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some materlal
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing
standards would identify it. '
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
T0 THE MEMBERS OF SP DISTRIBUTION PLC contlnued

In addition, as with any audit there remained-a higher risk of non- detection of fraud, as this may involve collusion, forgery, .
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are designed to detect
material misstatement. We are not'responsible for preventing non-compliancé or fraud and cannot be expected to detect
- non- compliance with all laws and regulations. :

6 We have nothing to report on the other information in the Annua!l Report

The dlrectors are, responsrble for the stratégic report and the directors’ report. Our oplmon on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon. . . .

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in domg S0, consuder whether, based on our
financial statements audit work, the information therein Is -materially mrsstated or |ncon5|stent with the financial -

statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work: : : .

¢ we have not identified material misstatements in strategic report-and the directors’ report;

¢ in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;

" and -

¢ inour opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance wnth the Companies Act 2006.

7 Wehave nothlng to report on the other matters on whlch we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if, in our oplnlon .

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audlt have not been
received from branches notvisited by us; or 5

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accountmg records and returns; or : )

. s certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not'made; or -

_ *+ we have not received all the |nformatlon and explanatlons we require for our audit,

. We have nothlng to reportin these respects

8 Respectlve responsrbrlmes

Directors’ responsibilities . ! :

As explained more fully in their statement set out on pages 16 and 17, the Dlrectors are responsible for: the preparation
of the financial statements including being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are frée from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as “applicable,
matters related to going concern; and using the. .going concern basis of accountlng unless they either intend to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or have no reallstlc alternative but to do so. . v

Auditot’s responsublhtles :
Our objectives afe to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material mlsstatement whether due to fraud or other irregularities (see below), or error, and to issue our opinion in an
auditor’s report Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
other irregularities or error and are considered material if, individually orin aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the fi nancial statements.

A fuller description of our responsrbllltles is provided on the FRC's website at www.frc. org uk/audltorsresponSIblhtles

+.9 The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsihilities

. Thls reportis made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mlght state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To'the fullest extent permitted by law, we do
- - not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Compaan members as abody, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions wé have formed..

Gordon Herbeitson (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants .
319 St. Vincent Street - o ,
Glasgow. ;
G2 5AS
23 june 2023
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sp DISTRIBUTION PLC
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Approvéd by the Board and signed on its behalf on 22 June 2023:

Scott Mathieson = | -
Director '

‘The accompanying Notes 1 to 26 are an integral part of the Statement of Aﬁnancial position at 31 December 2022:

22

at31 December 2022
2022 2021
Notes £m fm
ASSETS'
. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Intangible assets 3 02 -
Propertv, plant and equlpment 3,326.9 3,238.2
Property, plant and equipment in use 4 3,121.6 3,037.8 -
Property, plantand equipmentin the course of constructlon © 4 ) 205.3° 200.4
Right-of-use assets ) 5 605 60.7
Non-current trade and other recelvables 6 0.2 0.2
TOTAL NON- CURRENT ASSETS 3,387.8 3,299.1
~ CURRENT ASSETS - -
Inventories . 19.7 12.3
Current trade and other receivables . " - 162.8 1635
Cash ' 1.6 3-0

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 184.1 178.8

TOTAL ASSETS ) 3,571.9 3,477.9

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY . o
Of shareholders of the parent , 692.7 871.2

Share capital - 8,9 300.0 300.0
Retained earnings 392.7 571.2
TOTAL EQUITY 692.7 871.2

. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ) o
‘ Non-current deferred income 10 690.3. . 6579
Non-current provisions 11 1.4 1.6
Non-current loans and other borrowings 127 1,469.3 1,249.0
Non-current lease liabilities S 56.7 '56.6

- Non-current trade and other payables 13 0.2 0.1
Deferred tax liabilities 14 268.5 267.0

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 2,486.4 . 2,232.2

CURRENT LIABILITIES .

- Current deferred income 10 24.1 23.0
Current provisions 11 0.4 0.4
Current loans and other borrowings ‘12 921" 96.1
Current lease liabilities B 5 6.4 6.2
Current trade and other payables . 13 266.4 2452
Current income.tax liabilities - 3.4 3.6

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 392.8 374.5 .

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,879.2 2,606.7

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,571.9 3,477.9



SP DISTRIBUTION PLC. .
' INCOME STATEMENT AND STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021 °
- . Notes . £m £m
Revenue. . . S . . 15 - '533.7 458.6
Procurements ' u _ C - (74.2)- 0 - (26.7)
GROSS MARGIN _ A T o : 459.5 . 4319
Net staff costs . . o S 16 (14.4) - (13.7)

" External services i ' ‘ : . (85.7) (89.2)
Other operating results . : : o T 106 12.4
Net operating costs ’ _— ‘ » S (89.5) " - (90.5):
Taxes other than income tax S ’ 17 (37.0) ° : (36.6)

.GROSS OPERATING PROFIT . ' o " < © 333.0 . 3048
Net expected creditlosses on trade and other receivables . : ‘ (0.9) - (3.5)
Depreciation and amortisation charge, allowances and provnsmns ) 18- - {127.4) (123.3)
OPERATING PROFIT : , - - - 2047 178.0
-Financeincome - ) . ] : . 19 . 3.0 _ 1.1
Finance costs : ' - : 20 (46.9) (36.4) .
PROFIT BEFORE TAX . ‘ ' o " 1608 | 1427
Income tax ] : ) o - (32.3) (91.0) -

" NET PROFIT FOR THE YEAR . T 1285 . 51.7
Net profit for both years is wholly attributable to the equ:ty holder of SP Dlstrlbutzon plc
’ Net profit for both years compnses total comprehensuve income. .

All results relate to continuing operatlons. :

The accompanying Notes 1 to 26 are an mtegral part of the Income statement and statement of comprehenswe mcome
“for the year ended 31 December 2022. : :
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SP DIST_RIBUTION PLC
~ STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 31 December.2022

Retained

Share - .

* capital earnings * Total

£m £m £m

" At1January 2021 _ o 300.0 619.5 919.5

Total comprehensive income for theyear Co- 51.7 . 51.7,

Dividends B - ' - (100.0) . (100.0)

At1January 2022 300.0 '571.2 - 8712

Total comprehensive income for the year - 1285 128.5
Dividends . : - (307.0) (307.0) .

At 31 December 2022 300.0 . 3927 692.7°

The accompanying Notes ito 26 are an integral part of the Statement of chang’eé in equity for the year ended 31 December

2022.
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~SP DISTRIBUTION PLC
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ,
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022

2021
£m £m
Cash flows from operating aCtIVItI es : -
Profit before tax 160.8 1427
Adjustments for: . . :
Depreciation, amortlsatlon and |mpa|rment 1271 : 122.2'
" Changein provisions (0.2) " 03
Transfer of assets from customers (23.8) " (23.2).
Net finance income and costs 43.9 - 353
Net losses on dlsposal/wrlte-off of non- -current assets 0.4 04 -
Changes in worki ng capital:” - o :
Change in trade and other receivables (14.5) . (2f7)';
Change in inventories. " (34.6) (14.5)
CHange in trade and other bayables " 19.9 - 207
. Assets received from customers (deferred mcome) 50.7 37.8
- Income taxes paid - (31.0) (19.0)
Net cash flows from operatm&actlvmes (i) .298.7 300.0
Cash flows from investing actwltles . . '
Interest received 2.1 .07
Investments in intangible assets | (0.3) , -
Investments in'property, plant and equipment, . . (173.0) (163.3) -
Decrease in amounts dueé from Iberdrola Group compa nies - current Ioans recelva ble "14.3 s
Net cash flows from investing activities (ii) {156.9) (162.6)
Cash flows from financing activities . o '
Decrease in amounts due to Iberdrola Group companies current loans payable - (85.0) (140.8)
Increase in amounts due to Iberdrola Group compames non-current loans payable 300.0 145.0
Dividends paid to the Company's equlty hoider : (307 .0) (100.0)
Interest paid - (43.9) - (35.5)
Payments of lease liabilities A (5.5) (5.1)
Interest paid on lease liabilities (1.8) (1.8)
Net cash flows from.financing activities (iii) (143.2) (138.2)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (i)+(ii)+{iii) (1.4) (0.8)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 3.0 3.8
" Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1.6 ‘3.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year comprises:
Statement of financial position cash | 1.6, 3.0
Statement of cash flows cash and cash equivalents 1.6

30 .

The accompanying Notes 1'to 26 are an integral part of the Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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"SP DISTRIBUTION PLC
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
31 December 2022

1 .BASIS OF PREPARATION. - <

‘A COMPANY INFORMATION

" SP Distribution plc, registered company number SC189125, is a private company limited by shares, mcorporated in Scotland
and its reglstered office is 320 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland, G2 5AD. )

B’ BASIS OF PREPARATION

B1 BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

“The Company is required by law to prepare accounts and to deliver them to the Reglstrar of Companles The Accounts are
prepared in accordance with-the accounting policies set out in Note 2. Monetary amounts are presented in pounds Sterling
and rounded to the nearest-hundred thousand unless otherwrse mdrcated The Accounts are -prepared on the historical
cost basis.

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'’
(“FRS 101”): In preparing these financial statements, the Company has applied the recognition, measurement and
disclosure requirements of international accounting standards ("IAS") as adopted by the UK ("UK-adopted IAS") in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 including newly effective IAS for the year ended 31 December
2022 (refer to Note 1C). In applylng FRS 101 the Company has made amendments where necessary in order to comply
with the Companies Act 2006.

In previous.accounting periods, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with UK- -adopted IAS. The
Accounts for the year to 31 December 2022 are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with FRS
101. In the transition from UK-adopted IAS to FRS 101, the Company has made no measurement or recognmon
adjustments, and there has been no impact on the reported financial posmon performance or cash flows of the Company
as a-result of this transition.

In these Accounts, the Company has applied the exemptlons avallable under FRS101in respect of the followmg dlsclosures
o certain disclosures regarding revenue; .
¢ comparative period reconciliations for intangible assets and property, plant and equipment;
« reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities;
« disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly-owned subsidiaries of Iberdrola, S.A.;
« disclosures in respect of capital management;
« the effects of new, but not yet effective, 1AS pronouncements; and
» disclosures in respect of the compensatlon of key management personnel

As the consolidated financial statements of Iberdrola, S.A. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken .
the exemptions under FRS 101 available in respect of certain disclosures required by IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ and
the disclosures requnred by IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’.

The Company has one operating segment _

B2 GOING CONCERN :
The financial statements have been prepared ona gomg concern basrs which the directors consider to be appropriate for
the following reasons. :

The prlnapal activity of the Company is the ownersh|p of the electricity distribution network wnthln the Central Belt and
South of Scotland. The Company is amember of the group headed by SPUK, the Company’s mtermedlate parent company,
which is itself a subsidiary of Iberdrola, the ultimate parent undertaking. The Company’s cash flows are therefore
dependent on the continuation of those operations and have been considered.as part of the SPUK Group’s cash flow
forecasts, on which the dlrectors of the SPUK Group have performed an assessment of reasonably possible downsides.

" To meet its working capital requirements, the Company part|C|pates ina UK centralised treasury function operated by the
Company’s intermediate parent company SPL, the parent company of SPUK. ScottishPower’s treasury function works
closely with Iberdrola to managé the Companys funding requrrements There has been no indication that these
arrangements may change '
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1 BASIS OF PREPARATION contmued
-The directors have performed a going concern.assessment WhICh indicates that, after taking account of the capltal .
.investment of £549 million, in both the base case and in the scenarios of reasonably possible downsides, including lower
distribution volumes and possible storm-costs, the Company will require additional funds, through funding from SPUK, to
_meet its Ilabllmes as they fall due for at least one year from the date of approval of these financial statements.

SPUK has indicated its intention to make avallable such funds as are needed by the Company, in the event this is required.
As with any company- placing reliance on other group entities for financial support, the directors acknowledge that there
can be no certainty that this support will continue although at the date of approval of these financial statements, theyj
have no reason to believe that it will not do so. .

Consequently, the directors are confident that the Company will have sufficient funds‘to continue to meet its liabilities as
they fall due for at least one year from the date of approval of the fmanaal statements and, therefore, have prepared
these financial statements on a gomg concern basis.

"C 'ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
Cl IMPACT OF NEW IAS :
- As noted on the previous page, these Accounts have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted IAS. In preparing these
: 4Accounts the Company has applied all relevant standards and interpretations that have been adopted by the UK as of the
date of approval of these Accounts and that are mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2022

"For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has applied the foIIowing amendments for the first time:_

Standard - : i : ‘ . Note

* Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contmgent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: Onerous ) . © (a)
Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract' ’

* Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations: Reference to the Conceptual Framework' (a) .

* Amendments to IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and Equnpment Proceeds before Intended Use' ) (a)

* Annual Improvements to |FRS-Standards 2018-2020 Cycle - ) ) (a) -

(a) The application of these amendments has not had a material impact on the Combany’s dccounting policies, financial position or performance.

2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES -

In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement and estimation is often requnred in respect of items WhICh :
have a significant effect on the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses recognised in the financial _
statements. Management considers significant judgements and estimates to be those with a significant risk of resulting in
~ a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assetsand liabilities within the next financial year due to the inherent
" uncertainty regarding estimates and assumptions. As at 31 December 2022, the Company applied no such significant
~ judgemenits or estimates. '

NON- SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE COMPANY'S ACCOUNTING POLICIES
" Consideration of climate change
The impact of climate change on the ﬂnanaal statements, including the risk |dent|f|ed in the Strategic Report, has been
considered. No material impact on the judgements and estimates made in the preparatlon of the financial statements has
“been identified. This consnderatnon focussed on the following areas:
' ¢ the Company's going concern position, including the cash flow prepared for the directors' assessment referred to
in Note 1B2; and
e the risk of increased cost of capltal for investments in technologies or business models that are deemed to be-
. unrelated in the fight against climate change has been considered in terms of the potentlal impact on the cash
rows and-value-in-use calculatlons within an impairment test.

-Addltlonally, consideration has been given to any estimates over the Ionger-term which should be disciosed to aIIow for
an understanding of the financial statements. The Company has no estimates of this nature to-disclose.
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2 . JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES contlnued
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES .
The principal accountlng poI|c1es applied in preparing the'Accounts are set out below.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COMPUTER SOFTWARE)
" PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
LEASED ASSETS
IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS :
INVENTORIES
REVENUE
PROCUREMENTS
OTHER OPERATING RESULTS
" RETIREMENT BENEFITS
" TAXATION

AR-—IT6omTmohHhod

" A INTANGIBLE ASSETS (COMPUTER SOFTWARE)

" The costs of acquired computer software, such as licences, are capltallsed on the basis of the costs incurred to acqu1re
and bring to use, the specific software. Amortisation of acquired computer software is on a straight-line basns over their
‘operational lives, which is generally up to five years.

k]

B PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is statedat cost and depreaated ona stralght -line basis over the estimated .operational
lives of the assets once commissioned. Property, plant and equipment includes capitalised employee costs, interest, lease
depreciation and other directly attributable costs. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of major qualifying assets (i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use) are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are-stibstantially ready for their intended
use. Reviews of the estimated remaining lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are undertaken
annually. Residual values are assessed based on pr|ces prevailing at each reporting date. .

Land is not depreciated. The maln deprecnatton periods used by the Company are set out below

. . Years
Distribution facili‘ties ‘ . . ‘ 40
Meters and measuring devices . 3 - 22 »
Other'items of property, plantand equment 4 - 50 L

C LEASED ASSETS

A contract is, or contains a lease if, at its inception, thé contract conveys the rlght to control the use of an |dent|fed asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an -
identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in.IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ ("IFRS 16"). :

An identified asset will be specified explicitly or lmpllatly in the contract and will be physically d|st|nct or represent
substantially all of the capacity ofa physucally dlStII"ICt asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution rlght the assetis
not identified. .

A contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset if the customer has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of use, and the customer has the right to direct
the use of the asset. The customer has this right when they have the decision- -making rights that are most relevant to
changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. Where this is predetermined, the customer has the right to direct
the use of the asset if either they have the right to operate the asset or they de51gned the asset |n a way that predetermines
how and for what purposes |t will be used. :
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2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLIClES contmued
_The Company has elected not to separate non-lease components.and thus" accounts for the lease and non-lease
components in a contract asa single lease component.

C1 LESSEE :

. Asalessee, the Company recognuses a right-of-use asset at the lease commencement date measured initially at cost. ThIS
comprises the initial amount of the lease Ilablhty adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlylng asset, or restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it i is located, less any lease-incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated on a straight-line basis from the commencement date over the shorter
of the useful life of the underlying asset and the lease term. The right-of-use asset is reduced by any impairment losses
and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The Company presents right-of-use assets within Non-
current assets in the Statement of financial position and the depreciation charge is recorded within Depreciation,

. amortisation and provisions in the Income statement and statement of comprehensive income.

" The lease liability recognised at the commencement date is measured initially at the present vaIue of the lease payments
that are. not paid at that date. Where the rafes implicit in the leases cannot bé readily determined, the liabilities are
discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate, being the currency-specific interest rate that would be
incurred on a loan, with similar terms, to purchase a similar asset. The incremental borrowing rates will be updated ..
annually and applied to leases commencing in the subsequent year. Therefore, the lease liability is measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments); variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate initially .
measured using the index or rate at the commencement date; lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
Company is reasonably certain to exercise ‘an extension optlon, and penaltles for early termination of a lease unless the.
Company is reasonably certain not to do so. .

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in the future lease payments arising from a change in the index or
rate, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or. termination opti‘on
This thange in the lease liability will result in a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the right- of-use asset,
orin profit or Ioss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is zero.

The Company presents lease liabilities separately in the Statement of financial position; the discount on the [iabilities
unwinds over the term of the lease and is charged to Finance costs in the income statement and statement of
- comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not t'o recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for certain short-term leases that have a
lease term of twelve months or less, and leases of intangible assets. The Company recognises any lease payments
" associated with such leases as an expense on a straight-line baS|s over the lease term.

In the Statement of cash flows, the Company includes the payment of lease I|ab|||tles and interest pald on lease liabilities
within Cash flows from financing activities; variable lease payments which are not dependent on an index or rate are’
included in Cash ﬂows from operating activities.

C2 LESSOR .

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at inception whether each lease is a finance or operatlng lease. The
" Company classifies leases as finance leases whenever the lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards |nC|dentaI
“to ownership of the underlymg asset to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. "

When the Company is-an |ntermed|ate lessor, |t accounts for its interest in the head lease and the sub-lease separately;
classifying the sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not the underlying asset. If a
head lease is a short-term lease to which the Company applies the exemption descrlbed above, then it classifies the sub-
lease as an operatlng lease.

The Company recognises operating lease payments received as mcome on a straight-line basis over the Iease term as part
of Other operating results.
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2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTINé POLICIES continued

D IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE ASSETS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASED ASSETS

. At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its intangible assets, property, plant and equment
and leased assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any

-such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash.flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money, the rlsks specific to the asset and

lease liabilities under IFRS 16.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying: amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Where the
asset does not generate cash flows that are mdependent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs Any impairment is recognised in the Income statement and
statement of comprehensive income in the perlod in which it is identified. Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that thé loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
recognised, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

E FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ) : :
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entlty and a financial I|ab|I|ty or equlty
instrument of another entlty :

E1 FINANCIAL ASSETS
E1.1 CLASSIFICATION . )
Financial assets. are: classified as measured at amortised cost. The cIassnfcatlon of financial - assets depends on the
Company’s business model for managing them to generate cash flows.

The business model determines whether cash flows will result from coIIecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial

assets, or both. The business model'of the Company does not depend on the intentions of management for an individual

instrument. Therefore itis ot an instrument- by-mstrument classification approach but determined from a higher level of
. aggregation. :

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions:

e itis held.within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and _

e its confractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and mterest on
the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the ‘'SPPI’ test.. .

. FlnanC|aI assets are only subsequently reclassified when the Company changes its busmess model for managing
them ‘Reclassifications are effective from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business
model. Such reclassifications are expected to be infrequent.

E1.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

(a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets, except for trade receivables which are lnltlally recognised when'they onglnate are initially recognised
- when the Company becomes party, to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets are |n|t|ally measured at fair value. The exception is trade receivables without a signtficant financing
component which are measured at the transaction price determlned under’ IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with.
Customers’ (”IFRS 15%). °

" (b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses .

"Financial assets classified as -amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortlsed cost using the effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by expected credit losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses, and:
net credit losses are recognised in the Income statement and statement of comprehensive income. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in the Income statement and statement of comprehensive income.
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2 JUDGEMENTS ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES contmued

(c) Derecognition

" A financial asset (or, where -applicable, a part of a fmancnal asset or part of a Company of similar financial. assets) is
derecognised when either the rights to réceive cash flows from the asset have expired or there is no reasonable -
' expectatlon of recovenng all, or @ portion of, the contractual cash flows.

(d) Impalrment of f|nanC|aI assets

(i) Measurement of Expected Credit Losses (”ECLs") :

The Company récognises an allowance for ECLs for all financial assets. ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
- losses. The Company has adopted the simplified ECL model for its trade receivables and the general ECL modei for all other
financial assets measured at amortised cost: :

In applying the simplified model, Ioss allowances for trade recelvables are measured at an amount equal to a lifetime ECL.
The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its hlstorlcal credit loss experience, adjusted for, where
p055|ble forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the

" contract and those the Company expects to receive). ECLs are dlscounted at the effective interest rate of the fmancnal
asset. .

ECLs for all ‘other financial assets are recogmsed using the general model which works as foIIows , -
e for credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognltron ECLs are
" provided for crédit losses resulting from default events that are considered possible within the shorter of the next
- twelve months and the life of the financial asset (a twelve-month ECL); and : .
. for credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since’ initial recognltlon a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, |rrespectlve of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL). . .

As an exception to the general modeI if the credit risk of a fnancral instrument is low at the reporting date, management

can measuré impairment using’a twelve- month ECL and so it does not have to assess whether a significant increase in
“credit risk has occurred. In order for this operatlonal srmpllfcatlon to apply, the financial instrument has to meet the

foIIowmg requirements: :

e it hasalow risk of default;.

 the borrower is considered, in the short-term, to have a strong capacity to meet its obligations; and

»  thelender expects, in the longer term, that adverse changes in economic and business conditions might, but will not

necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil |ts obllgatlons . .

The Company considers financial assets to have low credit risk when therr credit risk rating is equwalent to the globally -
understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The Company considers this to be BBB- or higher per rating agency Standard
& Poor’s. Therefore, all of the Company’s other financial assets are considered to have low credit risk at both the beginning
and end of the reporting period.

. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:
internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amount ..
in full (before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company); or

e ..the financial asset is more than 90 days past due X

- (n) Credlt-lmpalred financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortrsed cost are ‘credit- impaired’. This "
is the case when one or more events that have a detrimental :mpact on the estimated future cash rows of the fnancral
asset have occurred .
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2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES cont/nued
E2 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

E2.1 CLASSIFICATION

Financial liabilities are classified as measured amortlsed cost.

E2.2 RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT _ )

(a) Initial recognition and measurement - - - .

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowmgs and payables net of
dlrectly attributable transaction cdsts. :

(b) Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost usmg the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised.in the Income statement and statement of comprehensive income. Any
gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the Income statement and statement of comprehensive income. This is -
the category most relevant to the Company as it lncludes interest-bearing loans and borrowmgs and trade and other
" payables. . . .

Amortlsed cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees, or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest charge is included as Finance costs in the Income statement
and statement of comprehensive income. ‘

(c) Derecognition
The Company derecognises a financial liability when the obllgatlon under that liability is discharged, cancelled or. explres :
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
“ terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, the driginal liability is derecognised and a new liability recognised.
" The difference in their respective carrymg amounts’isrecognised in the Income statement and statement of comprehensnve
income. :

F INVENTORIES
Inventories, wh|ch comprise plant maintenance spares, are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost
includes all dlrectly attributable costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

G REVENUE .

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promlsed goods or services to customers in.an amount that
reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. All revenue arises .
from operations within the UK. .

(a) Electricity distribution

The Company provides the service of maklng its distribution network available to customers This performance obligation
is satisfied. over time as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits of the Company’s performance
as it makes the distribution network available. The Company has a right to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Company’s performance to date. Therefore, revenue is recognised in the
amount to which the Company has a right to invoice based on the amount of allowed revenue for the year set by the
regulatory price control. Due:to the nature of the electricity settlements industry process, revenue includes unbilled
income recognlsed as a receivable relating to units transferred- over the network but not yet invoiced at the end of the
year. Invoices are raised one month in arrears and are typically settled within one month ‘

(b) Transfers of assets from customers

Pursuant to, the applicable industry regulations, the Company receives contributions from its customers for the

_ construction of grid connection facilities or is assigned assets used to connect those customers to a network. Both the cash
-and the fair value of the facilities received are credited to Deferred income in the Statement of financial position (this is a
contract liability). Revenue is subsequently recognised in line with the period over which the facilities are depreciated. As

" the cash contributions received from customers relate to underlying business activities, they are recorded as Cash flows
from operatlng activities in the Statement of cash flows.

H PROCUREMENTS
Procurement costs principally comprlse use of system charges from the system operator, Natlonal Grid. Costs are recorded
on an accruals basis. :
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2 JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES AND‘PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

|~ OTHER OPERATING RESULTS

Other.operating results is prrncrpally comprlsed of recharges prlmarlly in relatlon to the Company s unregulated income.
The line item also includes compensatlon and rebates recerved lease income, and galns/losses on disposal of non-current
. assets. .

J RETIREMENT BENEFITS .

ScottishPower operates two defined benefit schemes and one defined contribution retirement benefit scheme in the UK,
SP Distribution plc is a participating company in these group arrangements, and the contributions for the defined benefit
schemes are based on pension costs across all the participating companies. The Company is unable to identify its share of
the underlying assets and:liabilities in the defined benefit schemes, as the scheme administrators do not calculate these.

. separately for each of the various companies participating in the schemes and therefore treats these schemes as if they. -
were defined contribution schemes. The amount charged to the Income statement and statement of comprehensive
income in respect of pension costs is the contributions payable in the year. y

K TAXATION -
Assets and liabilities for current tax are calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantlvely enacted at
the reporting date. :

Def_er_red tax is the tax expected to be payable, or recoverable, on the difference between the carrying amounts of assets . -
and liabilities in the Statement of financial position and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profits {temporary differences), and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable proflt will be available against which deductlble temporary differences, unused tax losses or credits
can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it |s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. :

Deferred tax is calculate’d on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply.in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised based on tax rates andlaws enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Tax on the profit or loss for the year compnses current and deferred tax Tax is recognlsed in the Income statement and.
statement of comprehensuve |ncome :

3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer
. : ) . .. software
Year ended 31 December 2022 _ ' o ' £m
Cost: ) R , ' I . o
At 1 January 2022 : o R ' ‘ ’ -
Additions ) ) ’ : ) ) . - . 03
At 31 December 2022 B ] . . . 03
Amortisation: ' : ' : . )
"At1 January 2022 ‘ , o a : ‘ ;
Amortisation for the year : _ : o , 0.1
At 31 December 2022 - . B ’ - 4 K 0.1

Net book value o
At 31 December 2022 N : : . . _' 0.2
"At1 January2022 : : . . il - ) il
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4 #RQRERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) Movements in property, plant and equipment

Otheritems of

property, plant Plantin the
Meters and and equipment course of
Distribution measuring inuse construction
facilities devices (Note (i)) (Note (ii)) Total
- Year ended 31 December 2022 £m “fm £m- £m ‘£m
Cost: . -
At 1January 2022 4,544.8 131.8 T32.2 200.4 4,909.2
Additions ' . 6.7 - . 1.3 - 20 . 1756 185.6
Transfers from plant in the course of construction to pleni inuse 197.7 - 0.2 (197.9) -
Transfers from inventories (Note (iii)) ' - - - o27.2° 27.2
Disposals (15.9) {13.7) (0.1) . - (29.7)
At 31 December 2022 N '4,733.3 1194 343 205.3 5,092.3
Depredation: ‘ ’ . ’ .
At1lanuary 2022 1,542.9 118.1 .10.0 - 1,671.0
Depreciation for the year 1155 6.5 1.5 - " 1235 _
Disposals . (15.3) (13.7) (0.1) - {29.1)
At 31 December 2022 1,643.1 110.9 . 11.4 - _1,7654
Net book value: -
. At 31 December 2022 3,090.2 8.5 22.9 205.3 3,326.9
" AtlJanuary 2022 3,001.9 13.7 22.2 200.4 3,238.2
The net book value of property plant and equipment
at 31 December 2022 is analysed.as followé: . .
Property, plantand equipmentin use 3,090.2 8.5 22.9 - 3,121.6
Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction _ - - .- 205.3 2053
30902 8.5 22.9 205.3 3,326.9

(i) The category Other items of property, plant and equipment in use principally compnses other technical mstallatlons communlcatlons fac:lmes and

land.

(i) The category Plant in the course of construction. principally comprises distribution fBCI|ItIES in the course of construction.
(iii) Transfers from inventories represents £27.2 million {2021 £15.7 million) of capitalised spare parts.

{iv} The cost of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 December 2022 was £i$4 9 million (2021 £169.5 mllllon)

(v) Included within the cost of property, plant and equnpment as at 31 December 2022 are assets in use not subject to depreciation, being Iand of

£9.2 million (2021 £9.2 million).

{vi) Included in Other items of property, plant and equipment in use at 31 December 2022 are assets with a carrying value-of less than £0.1 mllllon
(2021 £0.1 million) which the Company leases to third parties via operating leases.’

(b) Capital commitments

2022
2028 and )
2023 2024 2025 - 2026 2027 thereafter Total
£m £m £m £m £m “£m - £m
Contracted but not provided 48.0 219 ° - - } e 69.9
- 2021
' . 2027 and
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 .thereafter Total
. - . _€£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Contracted but not provided‘ . 594 0.8 - - - - 60.2.

(c) Research and development expenditure

" The amount of” research and development expendlture

(2021 £0.1'million).
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-5 * LEASING

SA LESSEE

The Company leases many assets mcludlng Iand vehlcles and bu1|d|ngs Informatlon about leases for wh|ch the Company
is a lessee is presented below.

(a) Nature of leases

Land : .

The Company holds agreements to lease land and for the assngnment of rlghts to use land, primarily relating to operational
assets, with typical lease térms running from between two and 40 years. Certain agreements ¢ contain the right to extend
the terms.by up to seven years and for most contracts can be terminated with between one months’ and twelve months’
notice. :

Vehicles

The Company leases vehicles thh lease terms of between 18 months and elght years, prlmarlly being pool vehlcles to

mobilise its operational staff and other specialist vehicles. Certain agreements contain the right to extend the terms by up
" to one year; others can be terminated without notice. Other vehicle leases are considered short- term ‘and the Company

has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease I|ab|I|t|es for these Ieases ,

‘Buildings '
The Company leases buildings primarily as operatlonal depots The’leases typically have terms of up to'15 years. Certain
leases have options to extend the term from one to five years at the end of the term.

Other equipment - :

The Company leases operatlng plant, with Iease terms ranging from 13 to 37 years. Certaln agreements have rights to
extend the term by one to two years and others can be terminated without notice. Certain plant leases for generators and
temporary site security systems are considered short:téerm and the Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for these leases. .

Variable lease payments

Certain leases for land and buildings contain variable lease payments that are based on the building services supplied or
radio hill site usage. The fixed annual payments for the year were £7.3'million compared to variable payments made of
£0.1 million. The Company expects the relative proportions of fixed and variable lease payments to remain broadly '
consistent in future years. .

Extension options : - .
" Some leases, in particular of land and bwldmgs ‘contain extension options exercisable by the Company at the end of the
non-cancellable contract period or an agreed point before that date. Where practicable, the Company seeks to include
extension options in leases to provide operational flexibility. The extension options held are exercisable only byA the
Company and not by the lessors. At lease commeéncement, the Company will assess whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension optnons and reassesses this if there is a significant event or change in circumstances within its
control. : . '

Other information
The Company has not commltted to any leases that have not yet commenced. The Company has no contracts contalnlng
residual value guarantee, no leases subject to significant restrictions or covenants and no sale and leaseback transactions.
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5 * LEASING continued
5A LESSEE continued
(b) Right-of-use assets

= . Other
- o Land  Vehicles Buildings equipment Total
Year ended 31 December 2021 . Note . £m £m £fm . . _£fm £m
Cost: . o ' : ' '
At 1 January 2021° B . » 54.7 13:2 51 0.2 73.2
Additions. . ) : . . 2.2 2.0 ) - - 4.2
Adjustments for changes in |labllltles - i) . (03) 0.3 . - - - 03 0.3
Mosals : : (0.2) .- - - - {0.2)
At31 Decemiber 2021 - 564 . 15.5 5.1 0.5 77.5
_ Depreciation: o o . : '
_At1January2021 .. B 4.7 5.4 0.8 ] - --02 11.1
Charge for theyear -~ : i 25 2.8 .04 o - 5.7
At31 December 2021 - © 7.2 82 . 1.2 : 0.2 16.8 -
Net book value: . . . . ) .
At 31 December 2021 B ) 49.2 7.3. 3.9 0.3 . 60.7
At1January2021 - . B : . 50.0 7.8 ¢ 43 - 62.1 .
: : ’ : ) o a Other .
o land .  Vehicles ‘Buildings equipment Total
" Year ended 31 December 2022 - Note . £m £fm . £m £m ~ £m
Cost: ) . : S : ‘
At 1 January 2022 S ! ' 56.4 15.5 5.1 05 77.5
Additions ) ) A : 2.7 - o - 4.4
_Adjustments for.changes in liabilities . (i) 0.3 0.2 . 1.0 ) - 1.5
At 31 December 2022 L 58.4 184 - 6.1 0.5 83.4
Depreciation: . A ) . ' '
At1January 2022 - S 72 82 12 0.2 16.8
Charge for the year: : .25 2.9 : 0.6 0.1 6.1
At 31 December 2022 9.7 111 - 18 03 -22.9
Net book value: ) : .
At 31 December 2022 . ' 48.7 73 . 4.3 0.2 60.5
At 1'January 2022 . . 49.2 7.3 - 3.9 ~ 03 60.7

(i)  Adjustments for changes:in liabilities are movements in the right-of-use asset resulting from-remeasurement of the associated lease hablllty to

~ reflect changes to the lease payments due to any reassessment or lease modifications.
(i) Thereare no nght-of—use assets measured at revalued amounts. ’

" (c) -Lease Ilabllltles

The following table sets out a matunty analysns of non- derlvatlve lease |Iabl|ltles showing the undlscounted payments to

be made after the reportlng date

g . . L 2022 2021
. L ' ' £m “£m
Less than oneyear - o ‘ : ) 4 ) 74 7.2
Onetofiveyears ~ . - o : 20.0 195 °
More than fiveyears = : : ' 57.8 58.2
Total undiscounted lease liabilities at 31 December : - 85.2 . 84.9
Finance cost : . R K ‘ (22.1) - (22.1) -
. Total discounted lease liabilities L ' - ‘ 63.1 62.8
. Analysis of total Iease Ilabllltles ‘ L
Non-curfent L ) R . 56.7 - 56.6
. Current ) - . : - - - 6.4 6.2
Total : : ' . ' 63:1 62.8

Details of the Company’s risk management strategy for Ilqwduty risks inherent i in its lease liability are described the ‘Financial mstruments secﬂon of the

Strategic Report

N



SP DISTRIBUTION PLC A
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS continued
31 December 2022

5 LEASING co'ntinued.

S5A LESSEE continued

{d) Amounts recognised in Income statement and statement of comprehensnve income , )
’ 2022 2021

. Note . “£m ] £m
Interest on Ieasellabllsties ' . ' ) L. o (1.9) : (1.9)
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement ofleasellablhtles o (0.1) (0.1)
Expenses relating to short-term leases - : . i) . - (2.4 (1.4)

(i) This charge relates to-leases for vehicles and plant and equipment. Future commitments relatmg to the portfoho of short-term Ieases are expected
to be similar to the expense charged in the year.

(e) Amounts recognlsed in the Statement of cash fiows

2022 2021

. £m a £m

Payments of lease liabilities . ] : L . (5.5) - (5.1)
Interest paid on lease liabilities . ' . - ' (1.'8) ;. (1.8)
Payments for variable lease components : : ’ . (0.1) - (0.1)
Payments for short-term leases . . . B ' (2.3) . (1.2)
Total cash outflow for leases ' I (9.7) (8.2)

-

5B LESSOR .
The Company has contracts to lease land and buildings which have been classified as operatmg leases, because they do

" not transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets. These leases have terms of
up to two years. . . _ . 4 o ,
Lease income recognised by the Company durlng 2022 was £1 1 million (2021 £0.8 million). No income relating to vanable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate has been recognised. - ’

The following table sets out a maturlty ana|y5|s of lease recelvables showing the undlscounted payments to be recelved
after the reporting date: . C
2022 ’ 2021

£m . £m
Less than one year . ' o : . E . : 0.5 0.8
One to two years ) - . : 01. =~ - 07
Total undiscounted lease payments o ' oo 0.6 . 1.5
6 TRADE'AND OTHER BECEIVABLES .
' o . 2022 © 2021
Notes ~ fm £m
Current receivables: . ] R . ] ’
Receivables due from Iberdrola Group companies - trade ' i - {a) 15.7 - 13.5
Receivables due from Iberdrola Group companies - loans . .o (b) : 644 78.7
Receivables due from Iberdrola Group companies - interest co : 13 0.4
Tradé receivables (including'accruedincome) S . (a) 7222 . 61.8
Prepayments : < ' . ’ : - 01
Other tax receivables (mcludmg rates prepayments) . . . 9.2 . 9.0
: ‘ | 162.8 '163.5
Non-current receivables: i . ) . ‘
Prepayments . - . . 02 0.2
' " ' ' 0.2 0.2

(a) 'Tradeand other receivables includes £82.3 million (2021 £72.9 million) of IFRS 15 receivables.. £0.9 million (2021 £3.3 million) of net expected credit
* losses were recognised during the year on receivables and contract assets arising from the Company’s contracts with customers.
{b) Currentloans due from Iberdrola Group companies are receivable on demand with interest linked to the Bank of England base rate ("Base").
(c) Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market’ nsks and |mpalrment ‘losses for trade receivables are included in the ‘Financial
instruments’ section of the Strategic Report and Note 2E. .
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7 INVENTORIES
: ) 2022 - 2021
Notes £m £m
Inventories F ’ o -~ (a), (b) 19.7 12.3 .
(a) Inventories with a value of £1.9 million (2021 £1.8 million) were recognised as an expense during the year.
(b_) Inventories with a value of £0.1 million {2021 £0.1 million) were written off durlng the year.
8 . SHARE CAPITAL : :
o : 2022 -2021°
- £m £m
Allotted, called up and fuIIy pald shares: '
300,000,000 ordinary shares of £1 each (2021 300, 000 000) 300.0 . 300.0

' _The holder of these ordmary shares is entitled to dividends as declared from time to time; amounts on the capitalisation of .profits and reserves; and
notice and attendance at general meetlngs of the Company, with every member entitled to one vote on a show of hands and on a poll one vote for every

share held.

"9 ANALYSIS OF MOVEMENTS IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDER OF THE COMPANY

Retalned

Share -earnings
capital {Note (a)) ~ Total
: £m £m . £m
At1llJa nuary 2021 . . : 300.0 619.5 9195
Profit for the year attributable to equm/ holder of the Company - - 51.7 51.7
Dividends . - (100.0) (100.0)
At1January 2022 _— ' T 300.0 571.2 871.2

Profit for the year. attrlbutable to eqwty holder of theCompany : - 1285 128.5

Dividends ) - (307.0) (307.0)
" At 31 December 2022 ‘ ) 2 300.0 392.7 692.7

(a) Retained earnings comprise the cumulative balance of proflts and Iosses recognised in the flnancual statements as adjusted for transactlons with

shareholders, principally. dmdends

10 DEFERRED INCOME .
' At Receivable

Released

At
1 January ' during  tolncome 31 December
- ) 2021 Disposals " .year =~ statement 2021
" Year ended 31 December 2021 . ~ fm © fm - £m £m £m
Transfer of assets from customers . 6586 (0.2) - 45.7 (23.2) 680.9
At . ) Receivable Released . At
" . 1January during to Income 31 December
, : 2022 Disposals =~ year statement 2022
Year ended 31 December 2022 : £fm' fm £m ~ £m . £m.
Transfer of assets from customers ' 680.9 (0.2) - 57.5 (23.8) 714.4
_ o , 2022 2021
Analysis of total deferred income . - ) ' : " Note £m £m
Non-current ‘ ' 690.3 657.9
Current. 24.1 23.0
' (a) 680.9

7144

(a) Transfer of assets from customers is an IFRS 15 contract liability.
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11 PROVISIONS . ‘
’ . At ’ . " Released S At
1 January ‘New " during 31 December
: . 2021 - provisions’ : year 2021
Year ended 31 December 2021 . Notes . £m £fm - ’  fm £m
Environmental . - (a). 02 - .- - (0.2) . -
Decommissioning costs ) . (b) 0.4 ' - - - 04
" Insurance 5 . : ) 1.1 0.8 ) (0.3) ‘16
- : ’ ] ) 1.7 " .08 (0.5) 2.0
At o Released . At
1lJanuary New  during 31 December
. . 2022 provisions " year 2022
Year ended 31 December 2022 Notes ._-£m ~_fm fm - £m
Decommissioning costs : T (b) 0.4 - - - 04
Insurance’ . O 1.6 0.5 ‘ (0.7) 1.4
) ] 2.0 _ 05 - (0.7) 1.8
: v o - 2022 " 2021
‘Analysis of total provisions ’ S fm £m
Non-current . . . : 14 1.6
Current 3 . . 0.4 0.4
) 1.8 . 2.0

(a)
(b)

(c) -

12

The provision for environmental costs related to obligations under the Control of Asbestos at Work Regulatlons This provision was released in the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The provision for decommissioning costs is the -discounted future estimated costs of decommnssnomng certain non-current assets. The
decommissioning is expected to occur between 2023 and 2038.

The provision for insurance principally represents the value of claims reserves. The provision is expected to be utilised between 2023 and 2024.

LOAN_S‘AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(a) Analysis by instrument and maturity - )
. - Interestrate - Interestrate . 2022 2021
Instrument . . Notes 2022* 2021* Maturity - £m - £m
Loans with Iberdrota Group companies @).(ii) o 3.416% 3.416% 21 December 2022 : - . 85.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies ,(i),hii) . 2821% - 2.821% 31 March 2025 80.0 80.0°
£350 miliion euro-sterling bond (iv), v), (vi) 5.875% .5.875% 17 Ju'ly 2026 349.0 - 3487
Loans _with Iberdrola Gréup companies (vii), (viii) SONIA+CAS+0.78% LIBOR+0.78% 20.December 2027 120.0 120.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies (i), (vii), (ix) SONIA+1.025% LIBOR+1.025% 27 December 2029 ° 350.0 350.0-
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies’ (vii), (ix) SONIA+0.78% UBOR +0.78% 22 December 2030 350.0 . .-350.0
Loans with Iberdrola Group companies (ix) ) 3.60% Coe 9 June 2032 300.0 -
Accrued interest ) (x) : : . 124 11.4
- : ) ) : 1,561.4 1,345.1
. 2022 2021
Analysis of total loans and other borrowings i : . Note ~ £m £m
Non-current - : N 1,469.3 1,249.0
Current. . - {xi) . 92.1 96.1
- : : ‘ " 1,561.4 1,345.1

* SONIA + CAS - Sterling Overmght Index Average plus Credlt Adjustment Spread; LIBOR - London Inter—Ba nk Offer-Rate; SONIA - Sterling Overnight index
Average. .

(i)

(i‘i)
(iii)
(iv)
v)

" Under the conditions of this loan agreement the Company has an option, without fee or penalty, to make a repayment in whole or in part, of the

then outstanding loan principal, plus accrued interest thereon by prov:dlng SPUK wuth written notice at least five business days before the intended
repayment date.

The loan that was repayable in December 2022, was repayable in equal instalments on a blenmal basis. The repayment of £85 0 million that was
due in 2022 was classified as current in the 2021 analysis above.

The loan that is répayable in March 2025, is repayable in equal instalments ona blenmal baS|s The repayment of £40 0 ITll"IOFI that is due in 2023
is classified as current in the 2022 analysis above.

This bond contains a “Loss of licences’ covenant that will require repayment of the outstanding .amount should the Company lose its relevant -
licences.

The Company has external debt that contains Ioan covenants. None of these covenants require covenant ratios to be caIcuIated A future breach of
covenants may require the Company to repay the loan earlier than indicated in the above table. Under the agreements, the covenants are monitored
on a regular basis by the ScottishPower treasury function and regularly reported to management to ensure compliance with the agreements. .
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12 LOANS AND OTHER.BORP'ROWINGS »

‘(a) Analysis by instrument and maturity continued
{vi) The £350 million euro-sterling bond will be redeemed at its principal amount on 17 July 2026 unless previously redeemed or purchased and
" cancelled. The'bond can be redeemed at any time by the Company at a higher redemption price (as determined by a financial advisor appointed by
the Company and Fiscal Agent) giving 30 to 60 days’ notice. The bond is shown net of finance costs of (£0.3) million (2021 £(0.3) mrlllon), which are
classified as current in the analysis above.

(vii) " As of 1 January 2022, all long-term debt instruments which referenced LIBOR were amended to reference SONIA + CAS (where relevant) + margm
This was implemented as & result of the LIBOR cessation from end of 2021. As of 2022, the interest applred is based on SONIA plus the relevant
margin.

(viii} The foan that is repayable in December 2027, is repayable in equal mstalments on a biennial basis. The repayment of £40.0 mllllon that is due in
2023 is classified as current in the 2022 analysis above.

(ix) The loans that are repayable in December 2029, December 2030 and June 2032 are repayable in full at maturity.

(x) Accrued interest at 31'December 2022 includes amourits due to Iberdrola Group companies of £3.0'million (2021 £2.0 million).

(xi} Current borrowings as at 31 December 2022 comprise the short-term element of the 2025 loan (refer to footnote (iii) on the previous page) the
short-term element of the 2027 loan (refer to footnote (viii) above), accrued interest.payable and finance costs due to-be amortised within one
year which totalled £{0.3) million. Current borrowings as at 31 December 2021 comprlsed the short-term element of the 2022 loan {referto footnote
(ii) on the previous page), accrued interest payable and finance costs due to be amortised within one year which totalled £(0.3) million.

{xii) InJuly 2020, the Company entered into'an intra-group committed revolving credit facility arrangement with SPUK for £250.0 million, with an expiry
date of February 2025. Therefore, at the date of signing these Accounts, the Company has £250.0 million of undrawn committed facilities available.

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

. - 2022 . 2021
Notes £fm. £m
. Current trade and other payables: ) . o . .
Payables due to Iberdrola Group companies - trade ) e 76.1 80.0
Payables due to'lberdrola Group companies- other ' ’ ‘ (a) . 10.4. ’ 10.4
. Trade payables : . ' . ' 63.6 55.1
Other taxes and social security . ; ' 15.2 13.5,
Payments received on account ' ) . . - (b) 66.9 . 58.5
) . Capital payables and accruals o ’ - 204 19.0
Other payables - . o (a) 13.8 8.7
- 266.4 " 245.2
- Non-current other payables: . -
Other payables ) - ' . o .. 0.2 0.1’
' ‘ ' 0.2 : 0.1

.{a) The Company utilises forms of collateral to manage its credit exposure in respect of the provision of network services. All collateral held is settled in
’ cash. At 31 December 2022, the Company held cash collateral of £22.6 million (2021 £17.8 million) of WhICh £10.4 million {2021 £10 4 mllhon) is
payable to Iberdrola Group companies.
{b) Trade and other payables includes £66.9 million (2021°£58.5 million) of IFRS 15 contract liabilities.

14 DEFERRED TAX ‘
Deferred tax provided in the Accounts is as follows:

Property, o Other
" plantand - temporary
equipment differences Total’
- . . Note ) £m £m £m
© At1lJanuary 2021 o . © 1955 (0.1) 195.4
Charge to the Income statement and statement ’ ' :
of comprehensive income - o . () T 716 - 71.6
* At1January 2022 : . 267.1 (0.1) 267.0
Charge to the Income statement and statement . :
of comprehensrve income . : 1.5 _ - 1.5
At 31 December 2022 - _268.6 - (0.1) 268.5

(a) Legislation was enacted on 10 June 2021 under the Finance Act 2021 that increased the UK Corporation Tax rate to 25% from 1 April 2023.
Accordingly, the deferred tax balances at 1 January 2021 were mcreased by £59.6 m|II|on to reflect the rate that the temporary drfferences are
. expected toreverse at.
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15 REVENUE ‘ ' 4 o S - o s
' - B : : 2022 2021
. . . £m ) fm
“Electricity distribution ' - ‘ , ‘ 15099 - 4354
Transfers of assets from customers . . 23.8 ‘ 232
' - L ) - 3 . 5337 . - 4586
16 EMPLOYEE INFORMATION
{a) Staff costs
o ’ 2022 2021
. R Note : . £fm ) £m
Wages and salaries ' . ) o gy : - 415 '38.2
Social security costs : ‘ ' : o - 47 - 41
Pension and other costs ' . ' . .. (i) 10.9 . 11.8
Total staff costs - - : ’ : - 57.1 54.1
Less: capitalised staff costs : ) ) s : (42.7) (40.4)
Charged to the Income statement and statement of comprehensive income -~ - 14.4 13.7

(i)  Employee costs for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021 include those in respect of one director. The emoluments of all
other directors are included wnthm the employee costs of other ScottishPower companies. Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in Note

25(a). ¢

. (b) Employee numbers
The average numbers of employees (full and part tlme) employed by the Company, mcludmg UK based dlrectors were:

, . Average Average B
. ' ' 2022 - 2021
Administrative staff ‘ ) S .. 207 . 201
Operations . - ' . . 526 g 511
Total - - ' o . ’ . - 733 712

'(c) Pensions
The Companys contributions payable i in the year were £10 2 million (2021 £11.1 million). The Company contributes to

ScottishPower's defined benefit and defined contribution schemes in the UK and the contributions payable in the year

* reflect the contributions payable in respect of active participants in the group schemes who are employed by the Company.

" Full details of these schemes are- provided in the most recent Annual Report and Accounts of SPUK, the intermediate -

" holding company and the sponsoring company of the retirement benefit scheres. As at 31 December 2022, the surplus in _
ScottishPower's defined benefit schemes in the UK amounted to £240.0 million (2021 £192.2 million). The employer
contribution rate for these schemes in the year ended 31 December 2022 was 52.9-53.4%. '

17 TAXES OTHER THAN INCOME TAX o .
) 2022 - - 2021

. . i £m £m -
" Property taxes ' . - - ] 37.0 ) 36.6
18 DEPRECIATION AND AMO_RTISATIQN CHARGE, ALLOWANCES AND PROVISIONS - : :
' o ' : ' . 2022 " 2021
: . . . £m : £m
,Property, plant and equipment depreciation charge : . ’ “.1235" 118.9
Right-of-use asset depreciation cha rge . ’ ' o o 6.1 5.7
- Intangible asset amortisation charge i ' - 0.1 -
. Charges and provisions, allowances and |mpa|rment ofassets .03 : 1.1
: : : A 1300 125.7 -
Capitalised right-of-use asset depreciation ) . . i ) (2.6) (2.4)
' ‘ - 127.4 1233
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19 FINANCE INCOME A -
2022 2021

- £m .__fm
Interest on bank and other deposits - - 0.1
“Interest receivable from Iberdrola ‘Group companies 3.0 ‘ 1.0
. ; . . 3.0 1.1
20 FINANCE COSTS :
‘ 2022 - . 2021
. . ) £m. . fm
Interest on amounts due to Iberdrola-Group companies 243 ) -13.8°
Interest on other borrowings 209 20.9
Interest on-lease liabilities 1.9 1.9
K ' o 47.1 36.6
Capitalised interest 0.2) . - (0.2)°
. i 46.9 - 364
21 INCOME TAX ‘ . . o . A
CoL R . . 2022 2021
) £m ) £m
Current tax: L '
UK Corporation Tax charge on profits for the year 274 195
_Adjustments in respect of prior years ' L 3.4 (0.1)
Current tax for the year - . -30.8 .. 194
Deferred tax: : ' ' ~ 4 <
Origination and reversal of temporary dlfferences 70 11.8
Adjustments in respect of prior years (5.5) 0.2
Impact of tax rate change on opening deferred tax balance - 59.6
Deferred tax for the year 1.5 716.
lnoome tax expense for the year 323 - 91 .0

The tax charge on profit on ordinary actlvmes for the year varied from the standard rate of UK Corporatlon Tax apphcable
to the Company as follows :

2022 2021
- £m : £m
VCorpofation Tax at 19% (2021 19%) - 306 ' - 271
Adjustments in respect of prior years . (2.1) ‘0.1 .
Impact of tax rate change on opening deferred tax balance - ' 59.6
Impact of tax rate change on current year.charge 3.2 3.6
"Non-deductible expenses and other permanent differences 0.6 - 0.6
Income tax expense for the year ! - . 323 . 91.0

Legislation was enacted on 10 June 2021 undér the Finance Act 2021 that increased the UK Corporation Tax |"ate to 25% from 1 April 2023. Accordingly,
" . the deferred tax balances at 1 January 2021 were increased by £59.6 million reflecting the rate that the temporary differences are expected to reverse-

v

at.

22 DIVIDENDS ’ ) - . .
2022 . . 2021 . 2022 | 2021 )

pence per ordinary share pence perordinaryshare £m £m
. _Interim dividend paid 102.3 X ' - 333 “307.0 . 100.0.
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23 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

'Debt guarantee

As part of the exercise to achneve Iegal separation of SPUK s businesses pursuant to the provision of the Utl|ItIeS Act 2000,
the Company and other subsidiary companies of SPUK have provided guararitees to external lenders of SPUK for debt
existing in that company at 1 October 2001. The value of debt guaranteed by these companles " which was still outstandmg
at 31 December 2022 was £797.3 million (2021 £765 8 million).

‘Regulatory inquiries . .

From time to time, Ofgem open inquiries with the Company in relatlon to compliance with licences, laws and regulations.
The Company is currently involved in one such matter and is working proactively with Ofgem to reach a conclusion; the
dlrectors consider the probability of a material financial impact to be remote. ‘

24" FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

2022 - .
) 2028 and -
2023 2024 2025 2026 . 2027 thereafter Total
L . A £m _£m__ £m £m £m - £m : £m .
Contractual commitments . 4.0 3.5 - ) - - - 75
2021 :
i . . . 2027 and .
2022 2023 2024 2025 -2026  thereafter . Total
£m £m - £m fm fm - fm: £m
Contractual commitments 741 - - - - - - : 7.1

25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

" (a) Directors' remuneration

The total remuneration of the directors that provnded qualifying services to the Companv are shown below. As these
directors are remunerated for their work for Energy Networks, it has not been possible to apportion the remuneration
specifically in respect of services to this company. Of the seven (2021 five) directors, six (2021 four) were remunerated by
other ScottishPower companies durlng the year. . . )
' : 2022 - 2021

, . _ A £000 . £000
Aggregate remuneration in respect of qualifyi ng‘services B C 1,232 1,352
Number of directors who exercised share options . . ' ) : . 2 ) 2
Number of directors who received shares under a Iong-term incentive scheme ' : 2 2
Number of directors accruing retirement benéfits under a defined benefit scheme ‘ 2 . 2
. . ) . 2022 - 2021
iighes't paid director . ) . _ . £000 "£000
Aggregate remuneration o A S - 557 804
Accrued pension benefit - 4 ' 110 102

(i) The hlghest paid director received shares under a Iong -term incentive scheme durmg both years.
(ii) The highest paid director exercised share optlons dunng both years.
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25 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
(b) Immediate and ultimate parent company

The immediate parent company is SPENH. Copies of the accounts of SPENH may be obtalned from its registered ofﬁce at

320 St Vincent Street, Glasgow, Scotland G2 5AD..

The dlrectors regard Iberdrola S. A (lncorporated in Spain) as the ultimate. parent company, which is. also the parent
company of the largest groupin which. the results of the Company are consolidated The parent company of the smallest‘

" group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is SPUK.

Copies of the consolidated accounts of Iberdrola, S.A. may be obtalned from Iberdrola S.A. atits. reglstered off:ce Torre'
Iberdrola, Plaza Euskadi 5, 48009, Bilbao, Spain. Copies of the consolidated accounts of SPUK may. be obtained from its

registered office, 3205t Vlncent Street, Glasgow, G2 5AD.

The Company has no other related undertaklngs in addltlon to the parent undertakmgs disclosed above

26 .AUDITOR"S REMUNERATION -

2022

2021

. . . £000 £000

* Audit of the Annual accounts o : ) ’ . 204 141
Audit-related assurance services ' . 5 : ' ‘ : , 6 -6
147

Total 3 - ' 4 210



